()

k jSUPEHACTIVE

Superactive Group Company Limited

EHEXREBRIRAQT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBFEEMALZBRAF)

Stock Code BRR5% : 176

ANNUAL REPORT



CONTENTS
H 8%

Corporate Information

BB

Five Year Financial Summary
RFEPBEHE

Chairman’s Statement

TEWE

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
ERENwmEDT

Biographical Details of Directors
EEBEREFHE

Directors’ Report

EEgnE

Corporate Governance Report
hEERWmE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HehkEAmE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B B R

Consolidated Statement of Profit Or Loss

FABERK

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEzElEE

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BARRE

Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
EARREHE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RAEREMER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M RARME

13

16

30

45

81

90

91

92

94

96

98



CORPORATE INFORMATION
®REH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Leung Man Man
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman)
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Leung Man Man
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Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Keung

AUDITOR
BDO Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower,

Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN BERMUDA
Conyers Corporate Services

(Bermuda) Limited

Clarendon House,

2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
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Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communication Department.

Website: www.superactive.com.hk

Email: info@superactive.com.hk
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBER

RESULTS &

Years ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HL¥E

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

g g 33 0% —E-0\% —Et% ZERF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAR TAR TEx TET

Revenue g 101,129 184,812 237,525 206,526 141,267

Gross profit £ 42,267 51,157 42,069 20,019 18,999

Impairment of assets EERE (9,629) (10,758) (107,859) = =

Net impairment loss on CREERNERRTE (63,525) (20916) (35,157) 159 =

financial assets

Share of results of associates il NG 3 60 (10,533) 11929 54,122 16,333

(Loss)/proft before tax BHiA (B8), /&7 (104,561) (86,124) (193,179) 79,048 7,763

Income tax (expense)/credit iR (F) /B8 (1,588) (8,963) 11,167 (10,074) (4.277)

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) /& (106,149) (95,087) (182,006) 68,974 3,486
Attrioutable to: AT BB

Owners of the Company KAAHEA (108,257) (94,285) (174,334) 69,324 3,486

Non-controling interests RS 2,108 (802) (7,672 (350) =

(106,149) (95,087) (182,0086) 68,974 3,486
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
Rt=ZB=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEF ZE-NE —E-N\E “E—tf “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TAT TET
Total assets EEBE 1,360,944 1,389,722 1,485,203 1,257 549 533,763
Total liabilities BELEE 802,364 772,758 762,965 326,203 63,717
Net asssts BEFE 558,580 616,964 722,238 931,346 470,046
Equity attributable to owners of AR FIEE AEEER
the Company 547,601 625,467 717,640 921,224 470,046
Non-controling interests FERER 10,979 (8,509) 4,598 10,122 =
Total equity EneE 558,580 616,964 722238 931346 470,046
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”)), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue of the Group
decreased to approximately HK$101.13 million as compared to
approximately HK$184.81 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of approximately 45.28%. The
decrease in revenue was primarily attributable to the impact of the
outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and the disposal
of Alford Industries Limited and its subsidiaries (“‘Alford Group”) in
May 2019. The Alford Group contributed revenue of approximately
HK$87.58 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Following
the disposal of Alford Group in 2019, there was no contribution
from the Alford Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately HK$8.89
million from approximately HK$51.16 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately HK$42.27 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The gross profit margin increased from
approximately 27.68% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 41.80% for the year ended 31 December 2020
due to the proportion of revenue contribution from money lending
business has increased from 12.41% in 2019 to 24.81% in 2020.
The gross profit margin in the money lending business is much
higher than other business segments. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$106.15 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 compared to a loss of approximately HK$95.09 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase in the loss for
the year was mainly due to the net impairment of financial assets
increased from approximately HK$20.92 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately HK$63.53 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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PROSPECTS

The economic impact of the COVID-19 outbreak remains uncertain.
However, as the development of the vaccine of COVID-19 has
progressed, it is believed that COVID-19 will eventually be resolved
and alleviate the negative impact on the economy. To rebuild the
affected global economy, we expect that countries would implement
different economic policies to aid capital market and market
demand. The global economy will once again become fierce.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

At the Company, social responsibility is an integral part of how we
do business. We go beyond complying with legal or regulatory
requirements and genuinely work towards making a positive impact
on the welfare of our employees, our business partners, our local
communities, and the environment. Environment, Social and
Governance (‘ESG”) Report attached in the annual report provides
the public with an appreciation of how we perform and respond to
different ESG issues.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Finally, | would like to thank our employees for their dedication,
independent directors for their guidance and suggestions, and
shareholders for their confidence in the management and their
support. | am grateful to everyone who contributes to the success
of the Group.

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

31 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CEICEE e

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Gross Profit: Revenue comprised of sales of
electronics products, tuition fee from the provision of nursery
education service, interest income from the provision of money
lending, management fee received from property management
services provided and services income from the provision of
regulated financial services. The revenue in 2020 decreased
by approximately HK$83,683,000 (representing a decrease
of approximately 45.28% when compared with 2019) from
HK$184,812,000 in 2019 to HK$101,129,000 in 2020. The
decrease in revenue was mainly due to the impact of the outbreak
of COVID-19 and the disposal of the business of manufacturing
baby monitors and semi-products on 30 May 2019. The gross
profit decreased by approximately HK$8,890,000 (representing a
decrease of approximately 17.38% when compared with 2019)
from approximately HK$51,157,000 in 2019 to approximately
HK$42,267,000 in 2020. The gross profit margin increased by
approximately 14.12%, from 27.68% in 2019 to 41.80% in 2020.

Other net gains: The other net gains in 2020 were mainly
attributable to the gain on disposal of subsidiaries of approximately
HK$13,827,000, rental income of approximately HK$8,025,000,
and fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately HK$15,604,000.

Selling and distribution costs: The decrease was mainly due
to no sales and distribution costs were accrued in 2020 for the
manufacturing of baby monitors and semi-finished products which
were sold in 2019.

Administrative costs: The decrease was mainly due to no
administrative costs for manufacturing of baby monitors and semi-
products recognised during 2020.

Finance costs: The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
interest recognised on lease liabilities.

Impairment of assets: The impairment was mainly recognised for

the goodwill of the subsidiaries of the manufacturing of electronics
products.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net impairment loss on financial assets: The net impairment
loss on financial assets for the year comprises the impairment
loss on trade receivables, other receivables and loan receivables.
The impairment was recognised according to the expected credit
loss rates which are based on the actual loss experience over the
previous years adjusted for forward-looking information available to
the Group without undue cost and effort.

Share of results of associate: The amount represented the
Group’s share of the results of the associate, IT City Development
Fund LP, on an equity basis.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of money lending
service and provision of regulated financial service in Hong Kong;
and manufacturing of electronics products, provision of nursery
education service and property development and management
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the year. In
2020, the income from the manufacturing of electronics products,
interest income from money lending service, services income from
the provision of regulated financial service, income from nursery
education and property development and management income
accounted for approximately 54.39% (2019: 71.35%), 24.81%
(2019: 12.41%), 7.95% (2019: 5.98%), 1.74% (2019: 3.85%) and
11.11% (2019: 6.41%) of total revenue respectively.

Manufacturing Electronics Products

During the year, the segment of manufacturing electronics products
includes the manufacturing of transformers. The manufacturing of
electronics products contributed approximately HK$55,005,000
to revenue (2019: HK$131,861,000 representing a decrease
of 58.29% when compared with 2019). Revenue solely from
manufacturing of transformers in 2020 increased by 24.22%
compared with 2019. The main market for the business of the
manufacturing of transformers is the PRC.

Provision of Nursery Education Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of nursery education
services contributed approximately HK$1,756,000 to revenue (2019:
HK$7,124,000, representing a decrease of 75.35% when compared
with 2019). The decrease was mainly due to the outbreak of
COVID-19, which caused the suspension of kindergarten for most
of the year, and the kindergarten in Chengdu was disposed of
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERMWRS N

Provision of Money Lending Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of money lending
services contributed approximately HK$25,095,000 to revenue
(2019: HK$22,933,000, representing an increase of 9.43% when
compared with 2019). The interest rate of the lendings ranging
from 6% per annum to 15% per annum (2019: from 6% per
annum to 15% per annum) on the principals from HK$2,000,000 to
HK$51,000,000 (2019: from HK$2,000,000 to HK$51,000,000).

Property Development and Management

Lijiang Underground Walkway: The Lijiang Underground Walkway
is located at the underground of Minzhu Road and Fuhui Road,
Liiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC. The construction and the
final acceptance were completed in 2018 and those shops that
have been pre-sold before the Group’s acquisition have been
delivered to the respective buyers. The gross floor area of the
underground walkway project is approximately 36,583 square
metre (“sq. m.”), comprising a civil air defence work structure
of approximately 13,730 sg. m., 741 units of the saleable shop
premises with a total gross floor area of approximately 19,923
sg. m., a non- saleable property utility room of approximately 15
sg. m. and a commercial function room of approximately 2,915
sg. m.. The Lijang Underground Walkway is now held-for-sales
purpose but in the meantime, the shop premises will be leased to
generate rental income and management fee income. During the
year, the management fee income generated was approximately
HK$11,231,000 (2019: HK$11,846,000).

Provision of Regulated Financial Services

During the year, the segment of the provision of regulated financial
services contributed approximately HK$8,042,000 to revenue
(2019: HK$11,048,000, representing a decrease of 27.21% when
compared with 2019). The revenue of the provision of regulated
financial services was generated from the asset management
services.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Disposal of subsidiaries
In July 2020, the Group entered a sales and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of Chengdu One Two
Three Aozhong Education Investment Company Limited, a non—
wholly owned subsidiary which held the kindergarten in Chengdu at
a consideration of RMB10,000.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$11,598,000 (2019: HK$26,088,000) which
included approximately HK$7,216,000 and Renminbi (‘RMB”)
3,677,000.

The Group had interest-bearing borrowings of approximately
HK$498,952,000 (2019: HK$502,549,000) of which approximately
HK$198,562,000 (2019: HK$270,401,000) were repayable
on demand or within one year; approximately HK$79,908,000
(2019: HK$10,006,000) were repayable in the second year; and
approximately HK$220,482,000 (2019: HK$222,082,000) were
repayable in the third to fifth years, inclusive. The Group’s total bank
and other borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December
2020 was 36.66% (2019: 36.16%). As at 31 December 2020,
the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.87 (2019: 0.77). This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated
as total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
With the cash and bank balances available, and other current
assets could be converted to cash within a year, the Group has
sufficient financial resources to finance its operations and to meet
the financial obligations of its business.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a net asset value of
HK$558,580,000 (2019: HK$616,964,000), with a liquidity ratio
(ratio of current assets to current liabilities) of 1.73 (2019: 1.66).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERMWRS N

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the share equity of (i) Superactive
Financial Group Company Limited, the operating company of the
regulated financial services; (i) Link Complex Limited, a company
which held the 18% unlisted equity shares of a company which is
for provision of real-time kinematic solution; (i) Shenzhen Jiaxin
Enterprise Management Company Limited, the holding company
of a group operating the manufacturing of transformers; (iv)
Edisoft Investment Limited, the holding companies of a group
operating Lijiang Project, and its subsidiaries; (v) Shenzhen Baike
Enterprise Management Co., Ltd., the holding company of a
subsidiary operating Lijiang Project; and (vi) Next Millions Limited,
the holding company of a subsidiary operating the money lending
services, were pledged to secure the Company’s bond issued
on 29 December 2017. In addition, the office properties included
in Land and Building under Property, Plant and Equipment and
Restricted Bank Deposits were pledged to a bank to secure the
Group’s loans.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in HK$ and RMB. All the Group’s borrowings are
denominated in HK$ and RMB. The Group did not engage in any
derivative activities and did not commit to any financial instruments
to hedge its financial position exposure as at 31 December 2020.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had staff force of
approximately 250 employees (2019: approximately 300
employees). Of this, most were stationed in the PRC. The
remuneration of employees was in line with the market trend and
commensurable to the level of pay in the industry. Remuneration
of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries, bonuses and
long-term incentives (such as share option scheme). Total staff
costs incurred for 2020 were approximately HK$29,983,000 (2019:
approximately HK$40,818,000).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Yeung So Lai (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 43, joined the Company
on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted as the
Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017. Ms. Yeung has
been appointed as director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Ms. Yeung is presently a director of a number of private companies
engaged in the business of investment holding and is experienced
in corporate management. Ms. Yeung was also the executive
director and chief executive officer of Imperium Group Global
Holdings Limited (formerly known as JF Household Furnishings
Limited) (stock code: 0776) from 21 September 2012 to 31 July
2016, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
was executive director of Suncity Group Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Sun Century Group Limited and Hong Long Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1383), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, from 2 September 2011 to 31 March 2017.

Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar (“Mr. Lee”), aged 57, joined the
Company on 25 January 2017 as an executive Director and acted
as the Deputy Chairman of the Company on 8 February 2017.
Mr. Lee has been appointed as director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Lee obtained a Professional Diploma in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly
known as Hong Kong Polytechnic) in 1985 and a Bachelor of Arts
in Business Studies from the City University of Hong Kong (formerly
known as the City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1994. He had
worked in the Inland Revenue Department for over 15 years after
his graduation. In 2000, he joined Ernst and Young, an international
accounting firm, as a senior manager. He later obtained a Master
degree in International Accountancy from the City University of
Hong Kong in 2001. He was the executive director of Newtree
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1323), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 4 October 2011 to
31 January 2020. He is experienced in corporate management
and internal control. He is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. In addition, he is a member of the
Society of Registered Financial Planners.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
EEEERR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Hu Gin Ing (“Ms. Hu”), aged 62, joined the Company on
6 November 2013 as an independent non-executive Director,
chairman of the audit and risk committee and a member of the
nominating and corporate governance committee of the Company.
Ms. Hu has been appointed as a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company on 30 May 2014 and re-designated
as chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company on
15 September 2014. Ms. Hu has experience in media, television
network and private equity investments. Ms. Hu has been a director/
partner of NHL CPA Limited, Hong Kong, from January 2005 to July
2020 and the chairman of the board of Benepet Co., Ltd. from July
2017 to June 2020. Ms. Hu is now the vice chairman of the board
of Benelife Management Limited since February 2018. Ms. Hu
has been the Corp. CFO, Global Finance, of Acer Incorporated a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation for the
period from May 2014 to June 2017. Ms. Hu was an independent
non-executive director of Carnival Group International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0996), from December 2013 to April 2019 and
Enterprise Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1808) from
March 2011 to June 2020, all of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Hu is an independent non-executive
director of LVGEM (China) Real Estate Investment Company Limited
(stock code: 0095) a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Hu has been an independent director of Vigor
Kobo Company Limited (stock code: 2733) and Acer Synergy Tech
Corp. (stock code: 6751) since 28 June 2019 and 15 October
2019 respectively and both companies are listed on the Mainboard
of the Taipei Exchange. Ms. Hu obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from Florida International University, the US,
a Master of Science degree from Barry University, the US, and a
Bachelor degree in Foreign Language from the National Taiwan
University. Ms. Hu is a Certified Public Accountant, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well as
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and has over 26 years of experience in accounting and finance.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(Continued)

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William (“Mr. Chow”), aged 48, joined the
Company on 8 February 2017 as an independent non-executive
Director, chairman of the nominating and corporate governance
committee, a member of each of the audit and risk committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Chow is a certified
public accountant and an executive of an accounting firm in Hong
Kong and has various years of experience in auditing, taxation and
company secretarial practice in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow obtained a
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration (Hons.) from Hong
Kong Baptist University in 1996. Mr. Chow is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Leung Man Man (“Mr. Leung”), aged 53, joined the Company
on 17 April 2019 as an independent non-executive Director, a
member of each of the audit and risk committee, nominating and
corporate governance committee and remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Leung is currently a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and China-Appointed Attesting Officer. Mr. Leung obtained
a Bachelor of Laws in the University of Wolverhampton, the United
Kingdom and passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination pursuant
to the Training Regulations, 1989 in England and Wales. He was
admitted as a solicitor of the High Court in 1997. He is now a
partner of Messrs. KM Lai & Li, Solicitors.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a diversified investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 90 and the accompanying notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

To enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate the
shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a
dividend policy on 21 January 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to
declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to
be declared, the Company shall consider the Company’s financial
results, prospects and other factors, and subject to:

—  the Company’s Bye-laws;

— the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Bermuda;

— any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

—  the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

— any other factors that have a material impact on the Company.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment
and amount of dividends will be subject to the Board’s discretion.
The Board has the right to review the Dividend Policy from time
to time as it deems fit according to the financial and business
development requirements of the Company.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donation during
the year (2019: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 94.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company did not have any distributable reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders as at 31 December 2020.

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

On 29 December 2017, the Company has issued bonds to an
independent third party for a principal amount of HK$300 million.
The bonds are interest-bearing at 8% per annum at issue and
interest is payable quarterly in arrears and matured on 28 December
2019. The first instalment of interest was payable on 20 March
2018. According to the subscription agreement, the bonds are non-
callable until 29 December 2018. The purpose of the bonds is to
satisfy the funding needs of the money lending operation, the capital
expenditures for the development of nursery education business
and the general working capital of the Group. The proceeds of the
bonds were received on 2 January 2018.
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On 23 July 2018, the Group partially repaid the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000.

On 24 December 2019, the Group further partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder granted
an extension of the maturity date for the remaining outstanding
principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from 28 December 2019 to
28 December 2020.

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the third
supplemental deed (the “Third Supplemental Deed”) with the
supplemental. Pursuant to the Third Supplemental Deed, the
bond’s interest rate has been raised from 8% per annum to 10%
per annum; the bond’s final maturity date has been extended to
28 June 2022 and to be redeemed by phases. According to the
Third Supplemental Deed, the Company should redeem a bond with
a principal of HK$10,000,000 on 28 December 2020. On or before
28 June 2021, together with the aggregate principal amount for the
redemptions made after 28 December 2020, the Company shall
redeem not less than principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before
28 December 2021, together with the aggregate principal amount
for the redemptions made after 28 December 2020, the Company
shall redeem not less than HK$160,000,000. On or before 28 June
2022, the Company shall redeem all remaining outstanding principal
amount of the bonds.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Yeung So Lai
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing

Mr. Chow Wai Leung William

Mr. Leung Man Man

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the current directors are set out on page
13 to page 15 of this annual report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws and Code Provision
A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. All of the independent non-
executive Directors are appointed for a specific term.

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Chow Wai Leung William, and Mr. Leung Man Man shall retire
from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not expiring or determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS

Details of Director’'s emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The executive Directors, Ms Yeung So Lai and Mr Lee Chi
Shing Caesar have waived part of their salaries of approximately
HK$6,438,000 and HK$5,238,000 respectively during the year.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors and their
associates in the ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares
of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they have taken or are
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein, or which are required, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continuea)

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE
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Long Positions in the Shares of the Company REQATRARBZHE
Number of shares
&g s 4=
Percentage
of aggregate
interest to total
Corporate number of
Name of director Interest Total shares in issue
Mg
HERTROALH
E=pE A EER FH ZEDE
Ms. Yeung So Lai 1,152,731,9970 1,152,731,997 56.71%
BREX T
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar 1,152,731,997@ 1,152,731,997 56.71%
Notes: BieE

(1) This represents interest hold by Ms. Yeung So Lai through Super Fame Holdings
Limited (“Super Fame”) which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company.
Ms. Yeung So Lai has 55% interest in Super Fame, and she is therefore
deemed to be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company.

(2)  This represents interest held by Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar through Super Fame
which holds 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company. Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar
has 45% interest in Super Fame, and he is therefore deemed to be interested in
1,152,731,997 shares of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, neither the Directors nor any of
their associates, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions”, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors is considered to have interests in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of those
persons (other than Directors whose interests disclosed above) in
the ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions
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RAXBRARP 2 EEED
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Percentage
of aggregate
interest to total
Capacity in which Number of number of
shares were held shares shares in issue
WRER
HERITRE
BERAN S 4 R4 & E HWE B
Super Fame' Beneficial owner 1,1562,731,997 (L) 56.71%
FE! ExREEA
Jade Treasure Global Limited
(“Jade Treasure”)? Security interest 1,152,731,997 (L) 56.71%
BUEIRIRBR AR ([86E])? IR
[E: Long position L: &
Notes: B FE

1. Super Fame is owned as to 55% by Ms. Yeung So Lai and 45% by Mr. Lee Chi
Shing Caesar. As such, Ms. Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar were
deemed to be interested in 1,152,731,997 shares of the Company held by
Super Fame.

1. BEHBEBLXEIRTERAEDHES
55%R45% o ALt B RBZ L RFEX
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Long Positions (Continuea)

2. Jade Treasure is wholly-owned by Wise Prismatic Limited (‘Wise Prismatic”).
Wise Prismatic is wholly-owned by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (‘Huarong Overseas Investment”), which in turn is
wholly-owned by Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset Management”). Huarong Overseas Chinese
Asset Management is owned as to 91% by Huarong Zhiyan Investment &
Management Co. Ltd (“Huarong Zhiyan”) which in turn wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong”). Thus, each Wise
Prismatic, Huarong Overseas Investment, Huarong Overseas Chinese Asset
Management, Huarong Zhiyan and China Huarong is deemed to be interested
in 1,1562,731,997 Shares in which Jade Treasure has a security interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company
has not been notified of any other interests or short positions in the
ordinary shares and underlying ordinary shares of the Company
which had been recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required
under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in the form of
contributions to Hong Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund and the
PRC statutory public welfare fund, respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing
Rules. Other transactions which were exempted from the
requirements of the Listing Rules are also disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements as related party transactions.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business review is set out on page 8 to page 12 under
Management Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND MAJOR SUPPLIERS
Sales to the largest customer and the five largest customers
accounted for 18.95% and 61.45%, respectively, of total revenues
for the year.

Purchases from the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 13.18% and 46.83%, respectively, of total purchases
for the year.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s total issued shares)
has any interest in the customers or suppliers of the Company
disclosed above.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws of the Company provides that directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they are or any of them shall or may
incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices. The Company has taken out insurance against
the liability and costs associated with defending any proceedings
which may be brought against Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this report.

SHARE OPTION

On 6 June 2017, a resolution was passed in the 2017 annual
general meeting of the Company to adopt a new share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange has granted the
listing of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company
which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options
which was granted and/or may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme subsequently.

As at 31 December 2020, no share options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(A) Share Option Scheme
Purpose
To attract and retain the grantees and to promote the success
of the business of the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@)

any director, employee, consultant or advisor, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (the “Affiliate”)

a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant or advisor, substantial shareholder, distributor,
contractor, supplier, agent, customer, business partner or
service provider to the Group or an Affiliate

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher

of:

(@)

(©)

the closing price of one (1) share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets at the offer date, which
must be a business day;

the average closing price of one (1) share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five (5)

business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

the nominal value of the share on the offer date,

provided that in case of fractional prices, the exercise price per
share shall be rounded upwards to the nearest whole cents.
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(A) Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued share capital that it represents
as at the date of this annual report
203,257,138 shares, being approximately 10% of the issued
shares of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up
under the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date
on which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of the
offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 5 June 2027, after
which no further options will be granted, but the provisions
of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects. Options complying with the provisions of the Listing
Rules which are granted during the duration of the scheme
and remain unexercised immediately prior to 5 June 2027 shall
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of
the grant, notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

(B) Movements of the Share Option Scheme
No share option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since the date of the adoption of the scheme.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by BDO Limited which will retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Superactive Group Company Limited

Yeung So Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices to enhance corporate performance
and accountability. Continuous efforts are made to review and
enhance the Group’s procedures in light of changes in regulations
and developments in best practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with applicable code provisions of the CG
Code, save as disclosed below.

Under Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
at present have an officer with the title CEO. The daily operation
and management of the Company are monitored by the executive
Directors. The Board considers the present structure is more
suitable for the Company because it can promote the efficient
formulation and implementation of the Company’s strategies.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five Directors,
with two executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance had been
arranged for all the Directors and Officers of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueqd)

Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her appointment, so as to ensure
that he/she has an appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements. Directors are also regularly updated on the
Group’s business and accounting reporting standards in the board
meetings.

During the year, all Directors, have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by way of reading
materials or attending seminars, meetings, forums and/or training
course relevant to the Group’s business or to the directors’ duties
and responsibilities. The Company had received from each of
Directors a confirmation of his training.

During the year, the company secretary, who is the employee of
the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement.

The Board has a balance of appropriate skills and experience to
meet the requirements of the businesses of the Group. All Directors
had separate and independent access to the advice and services of
the senior management, the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

During the year, the Board met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third of the
board of directors, with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company had received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered them to
be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continueqd)

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The Company has established the nomination and corporate
governance committee (“NCG Committee”) and adopted formal,
considered and transparent procedures for the appointment and
succession planning of Directors. Appropriate candidates as
properly selected by the NCG Committee will be proposed to the
Board for approval.

The Board and the NCG Committee as a whole are responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. The Board reviews its structure, size and composition, as
appropriate, to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, one third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every year, and any
new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueqd)

Board Diversity Policy

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
in the Board. In January 2019, the Board adopted a Board Diversity
Policy.

The Company believes that diversity of the Board can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors when deciding on
appointments of Directors, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate from time to time. In implementing its perspectives on
Board diversity, the Company will also take into account factors
based on its business model and specific needs from time to time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board
are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of
members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside
new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The NCG
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in
carrying out such responsibility, will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy. The NCG Committee believes that the
current composition of the Board is based on the history and actual
conditions of the Company and it reflects the achievement of full
consideration of factors of Board diversity.

The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continueqd)

The Board meets regularly, and the Board meetings are held at
least four times a year, and at other times as necessary. Where
appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated
resolutions. The Board monitors and reviews, among others, the
performance of the Group companies, including operations, finance,
risk management, internal controls and strategic issues. The
principal functions of the Board are to:

e play a key role in the implementation and monitoring of internal
controls, financial reporting and risk management;

e assume responsibility for corporate governance and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations; and

e approve the Group’s strategies, directions and financial
objectives.

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board. The Board reserves for its decision all significant matters
of the Company and it has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operations of the Company to the executive
Directors and senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board for all material transactions entered into by
senior management and other executives.

The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

For all of the Board meetings, proper and reasonable notices,
adequate and appropriate information in the form of agenda, board
papers and minutes of the meetings are prepared and circulated to
all the Directors in a reasonable time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueqd)
The attendance records of all the Directors for the Board and
Committee meetings for the year are set out below:
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No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held

HESREE BTEEHA

2020 annual general meeting held on 15 June 2020.
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Audit
and Risk NCG  Remuneration General
Directors Full Board Committee Committee Committee meeting'
RER
Ezg EURER r¥ER
£ 4= ZR8 ZE® FMzRE REAE!
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEENT N/A N/A N/A
7 FEH T T 17
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FEREE N/A N/A N/A
1 FER TEH T 17
Independent Non-executive BUFHTEE:
Directors:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing WRET L 37 3/3 1 N 11
Mr. Chow Wai Leung Wiliam BB R &S 47 33 11 111 11
Mr, Leung Man Man RERESE 4 33 1 17 17
Number of meetings held BE-Z-EF
during the year ended +ZA=t+-HL
31 December 2020 FENBT2EEYA 7 3 1 1 1
Note: BT
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in fulfiling its
oversight responsibilities as to the Company’s financial statements,
reporting, audit findings and reviewing the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company, as well as the Company’s
process for monitoring compliance with certain laws and
regulations.

The members of the Audit and Risk Committee are as follows:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman), Mr. Chow Wai Leung William and
Mr. Leung Man Man, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

Work done during the year

e reviewed the annual report and the interim report in accordance
with the accounting policies and practices, accounting
standards, Listing Rules and legal requirements;

e reviewed the appointment of auditors for audit and non-audit
related services and their fees;

e reviewed the audit plans and findings of auditors, risk
management, internal controls and financial reporting matters;

e discussed the audit approach and significant audit and
accounting issues with the auditors; and

The Audit and Risk Committee met twice a year with the external
auditors in the absence of the executive Directors during the year.

There was no disagreement between the Audit and Risk
Committee and the Directors in respect of matters about selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

During the year, the Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 have been reviewed by the Audit and Risk
Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
compensation policy and practices with a view that a meaningful
portion of management’s compensation should be contingent upon
financial performance of the Group to foster the creation of long
term shareholder value.

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model described in
code provision B.1.2(c)() of the CG Code.

The members of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing (Chairman), Mr. Chow Wai Leung William and
Mr. Leung Man Man, all of whom are independent non-executive
Directors.

Work done during the year

e reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
management with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

e reviewed and determined packages of the Directors and
management with reference to their duties and responsibilities
with the Company; and

e ensured no Director or any of his/her associate is involved in
deciding his/her remuneration.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the emoluments
of the members of the senior management of the Group by bands
is set out below:

Remuneration Bands

B < 4% 5

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000 & T
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NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“NCG COMMITTEE”)

The NCG Committee oversees the composition of the Board
to ensure that qualified individuals meeting the criteria of the
provisions of the Listing Rules serve as members of the Board and
its committees. The NCG Committee also has the responsibility to
develop, recommend to the Board and oversee the implementation
of corporate governance principles and policies relating to the
operation of the Board and its committees and the Company as a
whole.

Where vacancies on the Board exist or an additional Director is
considered necessary, the NCG Committee will identify suitable
candidates and propose the appointment of such candidates to
the Board for consideration and the NCG Committee will take into
account the qualification as required by the Listing Rules, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics, etc. of
the candidates and approved if such appointment is considered
suitable.

The members of the NCG Committee are as follows: Mr. Chow Wai
Leung William (Chairman), Ms. Hu Gin Ing and Mr. Leung Man Man,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors.

Work done during the year

* reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, and
is of the view that there is an appropriate and diverse mix of
skills and experience;

e assessed the independence of independent non-executive

Directors and confirmed that all independent non-executive
Directors are considered independent;
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NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE (“NCG COMMITTEE”) (Continued)

Work done during the year (Continued)

e reviewed the profile and performance of Directors who will
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting and
confirmed that all those Directors are suitable to stand for
re-election;

e developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

e reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

e reviewed the Company’s compliance with the code provisions
of the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The NCG Committee continued to monitor the Board composition
with regard to its diversity policy by reviewing its size, structure
and composition to ensure that the Board has a balance of ages,
talents, expertise, skills, experience, culture, knowledge and gender
appropriate to the requirements of the Company. The Company
believes diversity is important to enhance the Board’s effectiveness
by encouraging a diversity of perspectives and to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Company will continue
to monitor and develop new objectives for implementing and
achieving improved diversity on the Board as and when it considers
appropriate with regard to the specific needs of the Company and
the market from time to time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct governing Directors’
securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following a
specific enquiry by the Company, that they had complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Group’s systems of risk management and internal control
involve the operation and/or supervision of the Board and the Audit
and Risk Committee. The main features and the key processes that
have been established in reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness
of such systems are stated below.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s systems of
risk management and internal control. However, these systems
are designed to manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable
risk profile, rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Group. Accordingly, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information and records
or financial losses or fraud.

The Board has overall responsibility in monitoring the process of
corporate reporting and control system throughout the Group. The
Audit and Risk Committee reviews and briefs the systems at least
annually.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes updating the systems of risk
management and internal control when there are changes to the
business environment or regulatory guidelines. The effectiveness
and efficiency of risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed annually.

The Group has developed an internal control system, which covers
major financial, operational and compliance controls to safeguard its
assets against unauthorised use, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records and ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing
basis by the Board and Audit and Risk Committee annually. For
any identified internal control weaknesses or defects, the Group will
enhance control measures to rectify such control weaknesses or
defects.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS (Continued)

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the systems of risk management and
internal control include the following:

e The Company has engaged an external professional internal
control consultant firm, Roma Risk Advisory Limited, to provide
internal audit services to the Group on an annual basis.

The Group has already established the inside information policies.
They depict the decision trees to distinguish inside information and
the necessary actions. Employees are required to keep all inside
information in strict confidence. Once the inside information needs
disclosure, the manner must be equal, timely and effective.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company’s principal auditor is BDO Limited. The total
remuneration paid/payable to BDO Limited and auditors of
subsidiaries and associate in respect of audit services during the
year amounted to approximately HK$1,303,000.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
auditor of the Company acknowledges its reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020
as set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 81 to 89.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensuring that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations and that all shareholders and
potential investors have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain
externally available information issued by the Company. Information
regularly provided to the shareholders includes annual and interim
reports, circulars and announcements in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The Company welcomes the attendance of shareholders at general
meetings to express their views. All the Directors are encouraged
to attend the general meetings to have personal communication
with shareholders. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders.

The Chairman of the Company, chairman of each of Audit and
Risk Committee, Remuneration Committee and NCG Committee,
and representatives of BDO Limited, the external auditor of the
Company, attended the annual general meeting held on 15 June
2020. All these persons were available to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.

For both institutional and retail investors, the Company’s website
at www.superactive.com.hk, provide up-to-date information of
the Group. All key information such as announcements, annual
and interim reports and circulars can be downloaded from these
websites.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i) Procedures by which Shareholders can convene

a Special General Meeting (“SGM”)

The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders
of not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company upon which all calls or other sums then due have

been paid, forthwith proceed to convene a SGM.

The requisition must state the purpose of the meeting and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
registered office of the Company with a copy to the Company’s
head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Room 1510, 15/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, for the

attention of the Company Secretary.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after three months from

the date of the original deposit.

(i) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
General Meetings (“GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a
resolution at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all
shareholders having, at the date of the requisition, a right to

vote at the GM, or who are no less than 100 shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at

General Meetings (“GM”) (Continueq)

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed
by all of the shareholders concerned and be deposited at the
Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary not less than six
weeks before the GM in case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution and not less than one week before the GM in case
of any other requisition.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

(iii) Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s registrar. Shareholders and
the investment community may at any time make a request
for information on the Company to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may also make
enquiries to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Room 1510, 15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE POLICIES

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of Superactive Group
Company Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group” or “we”), and demonstrates our commitment to sustainable
development.

The Group believes sustainability is a key to achieve continuous
success, therefore we have integrated this concept into our
business strategy. In order to pursue a successful and sustainable
business model, the Group recognises the importance of integrating
ESG aspects into our risk management system. We adhere to
the ESG management direction in accordance with the concept
of sustainable development, and are committed to progressing
effectively and responsibly against ESG affairs.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach
concerning its ESG issues. The board of directors (the “Board”)
oversees and sets out ESG strategy for the Group and holds
the responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal controls. With a view to having
a systematic management of the ESG issues, the Group has
arranged designated personnel from various departments to
handle ESG management as a working group. The working group
is responsible for collecting relevant ESG data and compiling the
ESG report. It periodically reports to the Board, assists in the
assessing and identifying the Group’s ESG risk, and evaluates the
implementation and effectiveness of internal control system. It also
reviews the Group’s ESG performance, including environmental,
labour practices and other ESG aspects.
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REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report generally covers the Group’s business and
operational activities in Hong Kong and the PRC. In particular, the
general disclosures and compliance matters of the ESG Report
cover the Group’s business activities driven by the provision of
regulated financial services and the manufacturing and sales of
consumer electronics, while the ESG KPI is gathered and included
under the Group’s business activities driven by the Hong Kong
office, which include the provision of regulated financial services, as
the Group has not yet established the data collection system for the
KPIs relating to environmental aspects for the manufacturing facility
for transformers. The Group will continue to access the major ESG
aspects of different businesses and extend the scope of disclosures
when and where applicable.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”).

Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices
has been set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30
to 44 of this annual report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period” or “2020”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers,
employees, suppliers and regulators. We take stakeholders’
expectations into consideration in formulating our businesses and
ESG strategies by utilising diversified engagement methods and
communication channels, which are shown as below.
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Expectations and concerns
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Communication channels
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NG

MBI BT &
B EZ R
REBEERIREAZEBmAGE

Procurement processes
Audits and assessments

w R
Fit BT

Review latest law & regulations
Inspections
EHRIEERLOER
W&
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We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG
performance and create greater value for the wider community on a
continuous basis.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group’s management and staff in major functions are involved
in the preparation of the ESG Report so as to assist the Group
in reviewing its operations, identifying relevant ESG issues, and
assessing the importance of those relevant matters to our business
and stakeholders. We have compiled a survey in accordance
with the identified material ESG issues to collect information from
relevant departments, business units and stakeholders of the
Group. The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material
ESG issues:

Materiality Matrix

ERHRER

BMWEBEREERNESE BERS
BFIRIRE e RERER SERER
Mt RAEE RMEE-

ERHRTE
AEENERENRTEBEANMNET
ME2EREIRE HERERRE A
wEI AR E R AL BRI EERE
HEekERFER ULFEZFHES
EHRMPNEBEFNENEZE -]
MRECHEINERRRE LB MER
FERHE DAL AR K EHREE A
P R B RN EREER - TXHE
MEEASENEARRE LB MER
=

Anti-corruption
RES

Product Quality
EREE

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

BpIE B T R3EHIST

BF R
Energy Management
RREE
5

Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights
R ERRE

Privacy Protection
FLBRE

Occupational Health and Safety
BEpERERS
Supply Chain Management
fpEsRER

Green Working Environment
YemiE

SETIEES ‘

HIESHETERRENFERE

IR

Community Investment ‘

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’ ASSESSMENTS &
DECISIONS

Employment Practices
ty EEIED)
EiR
BRI E
Training and Development W
)| laste Management
SRR e

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL & SOCIAL IMPACTS
HEE  RERMEVENERNREE

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirmed that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies and
internal control systems for ESG issues, and confirmed that the
disclosed contents in the ESG Report comply with the requirements
of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US

We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You are welcome to provide valuable feedback on
the ESG Report or our sustainability performance by email at
info@superactive.com.hk.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

The Group strives to protect the environment through
the implementation of control activities and monitoring
measures in our business activities and workplace. We
are committed to promoting a green environment by
introducing environmentally friendly business practices,
educating our employees to raise their awareness on
environmental protection and complying with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations.

In order to enhance our environmental governance
practice and mitigate the environmental impacts
brought by the Group’s operations, we have adopted
and implemented relevant environmental policies and
have communicated such policies to our employees.
These policies apply the waste management principles
of “Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace” as well
as emission mitigation principle, with an objective of
minimising adverse environmental impacts. These policies
also ensure the waste disposed or emission generated is
managed in an environmentally responsible manner. Within
our policy framework, we continually look for different
opportunities to pursue environmentally friendly initiatives
and enhance our environmental performance by reducing
energy and use of other resources.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with environmental
related laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas
and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions, water and land
discharge, and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste that would have a significant impact on
the Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Waste Disposal Ordinance, the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance, the Water Pollution Control Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC and the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the
PRC.

B HERETLES
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Emissions Control BERR A

GHG Emissions BERBHH

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are AEBERERBHRNHEER

generated from petrol consumed by vehicles (Scope 1) RAEBERERN AR (BE1)

and purchased electricity (Scope 2). We have adopted RNEE N (FE2) -REE

the following measures to reduce GHG emissions during B BB REUA T HE R

operation: DR ERIEBE:

e Plan routes ahead of time to optimise fuel o IRATMBIEZR UE(LR
consumption; BHER

e Switch off the engine whenever the vehicle is idling; o EEWEERBHSIE:

e Conduct regular vehicle maintenance to ensure o TEHIEITHEWMRE K
optimal engine performance and fuel use; and REERSIZ M KRR

BA: &

e Electricity conservation measures are described in e HEBREREEHA2TH
the section headed “Energy Management” under [RERE IR —EI&iE -
aspect A2.

Through the implementation of the above measures, the BBERLLAERE NEEE

Group’s employees’ awareness increased. The Group’s BENEREARERS A5E®

GHG emissions performances were as follows:

BERBBHEMERIT

Indicator?

5

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)
HEEAERBEBEER (EE1)

Energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)
BEREE R EREBEER (SE2)

Unit Emissions

By BER Y

2020

—EB-EF

tCOe 27.17
W —E(LiE 2

tCOe 19.53

WE—SE(CHEE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1 and 2)
BERBAHENE (BTE1KR2)

tCO.e 46.70
M _SEtREE

Total GHG emissions intensity?

BERBHERARE?

tCO.e/employee 1.95
W_EtREE EE
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Notes:

1.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, “How to prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the HKEX, “Global Warming Potential Values” from
the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5), and Hong Kong
Electric Investments Sustainability Report 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 24 (2019: 28)
full-time employees. The data is also used for calculating other
intensity data.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The principal source of emissions arising out of the

Group’s operation was fuel consumed by vehicles. In
response to the above source, the following emission
reduction measures are adopted:

Seek prior approval from the department head
for vehicle use so as to ensure a well-planned
transportation route to minimise unnecessary
transportation needs;

Ensure all the Group’s vehicles function in the
optimum conditions by having regular maintenance;

Prioritise the local vendors for products and service
supplies selection in order to shorten the distance
transportation; and

Arrange regular examination for business vehicles on
exhaust gas emissions.

B HERETLES
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Through the implementation of the above measures, the
Group’s employees’ awareness increased. The Group’s air
emissions performances were as follows:

BEER LAER AEEEERN
BRAMER ANREMERIEN
BT

Types of air emissions Unit Emissions

REHERESR B BB

2020

—EEF

Nitrogen oxide emissions (NOXx) tonne 0.0075
RE bR (NOx) U7

Sulphur oxide emissions (SOXx) tonne 0.0002
etk (SOx) U

Particulate matter emissions (PM) tonne 0.0006
FERL Y BERR (PM) 7]

Sewage Discharge

The Group does not consume significant volume of water in
its daily operation due to its office-based nature, therefore
its business activities did not generate a material portion of
discharge into water. Since the sewage discharged by the
Group are discharged into the municipal sewage pipe network
to the regional water purification plant, water consumed by the
Group is considered as sewage discharged. The data on water
consumption and corresponding water conservation measures
are described in the section headed “Water Management”
under aspect A2.

Waste Management

Hazardous Wastes

Given its business nature, the headquarter office in Hong Kong
did not generate significant amount of hazardous wastes during
the Reporting Period. In order to ensure the compliance with
relevant national and local laws and minimise negative impact
on the environment due to the waste disposal, the Group
has implemented an effective waste management system by
adopting the 3R principles (Reduce, Recycle and Reuse) for
wastes generated from the offices and manufacturing facility.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

To reduce the waste at source, the Group reviews the
materials in-out records and analyses the amount of materials
used in production at a regular intervals in order to prevent
the unnecessary waste of materials. Moreover, the Group
has provided different recycling bins nearby the working area
to properly sort and collect the recyclable materials without
mixing with the non-recyclable materials, and reuse or recover
the useful materials in the manufacturing processes to facilitate
the workers in waste segregation and recycling. The remaining
recyclable materials were then sold to the designated waste
collectors for recycling. The Group keeps tracking on the
types and amount of non-hazardous waste generated in the
manufacturing facility and continue to seek opportunities to
minimise the waste generation.

The Group recognises various types of waste such as tin
residues, organic solvents and activated carbon are defined
as hazardous waste under the national laws will be generated
inevitably during the production process, and these hazardous
wastes must receive proper treatment before disposal prevent
harmful impacts on our environment. All the hazardous
wastes are properly categorised, segregated and stored in
rigid containers that are resistant to chemicals actions with
drip tray in the designated storage area, in order to avoid
mixing with incompatible wastes and to prevent chemical
leakage, containers for hazard identifications and fire safety
are decorated with proper safety labelling and cautions
signage. The hazardous wastes are consigned to licensed
waste collectors for further treatment and disposal. In order
to minimise the amount of hazardous waste generated, the
chemicals and solvents will be recycled and reused in the
production process as much as possible.

B HERETLES
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Non-hazardous Wastes

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group are mainly
paper. With the aim of minimising the environmental impacts
from non-hazardous wastes generated from our business
operations, the Group upholds the 3R principles, and has
developed relevant waste reduction policies and guidelines.
The Group’s staff and the assigned administrative staff
collectively take the responsibilities for waste management in
its offices, and have conducted measures such as:

e Organise, maintain and clean the garbage and waste
recycling areas;

e  Sort recycled wastes into appropriate containers;

e Place appropriate signage on walls and bins, indicating
the types of wastes to be recycled; and

e Ensure that no garbage is to be placed on building
colonnade areas.

At the same time, the Group has adopted the following
practices to reduce paper waste at source in order to reduce
paper consumption:

e  Minimise the paper usage at our workplace by recycling
used papers regularly and use double-sided printing; and

e Recycle and reuse papers, carton boxes, envelopes
and folders which have been used, including all non-
confidential documents from the Group.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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ugh the implementation of the above measures, the

Group’s employees’ awareness increased. The Group’s non-

haza

rdous wastes disposal performances were as follows:

BE HERELERS

BREERLENER AEEREERN

BRAMMES-

AEBNEEER

MERIRERNT

Non-hazardous waste category Unit Disposal
EEBRZEVER B BB
2020

—EEF

Paper tonnes 0.59

AR A

Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 0.02

BREERZEVETE W, &8

A2. Use of Resources A2, ERfEH

The Group is committed to optimising the use of AEBERNREMEBEER

resources in our business operations. Therefore, we
have taken initiatives to introduce resource efficiency and
eco-friendly measures to the Group’s operations on a
continuous basis.

The Group has established relevant policies and
procedures in governing the efficient use of resources,
including petrol, electricity and office consumables, in
accordance with the objectives of achieving higher energy
efficiency and reducing the unnecessary use of resources.

Energy Management

The Group aims to minimise the environmental impacts
resulted from our operations by identifying and adopting
appropriate measures. Energy policies, measures, and
practices have been developed to show our commitment
on energy efficiency. All employees are required to adopt
such measures and practices, including the purchase of
energy-efficient products, and assume responsibility for
the Group’s overall energy efficiency.
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The

energy consumption of the Group was mainly

contributed by the electricity consumed in operation and
petrol consumed by vehicles. The Group has introduced
various measures and initiatives to achieve the goal of
energy saving and efficient consumption. Such measures
and initiatives include but not limited to:

Install energy-efficient Light-emitting Diode (“LED”)
lights;

Replace old models of machine with high
consumption of electricity;

Prioritise higher energy-efficient models when
purchasing new office appliance;

Encourage employees to turn off idling equipment,
computers and lightings when not in use or after
working hours;

Utilise natural lighting and natural ventilation in
workplace; and

Maintain the comfort room temperature at 25

REBMERBRETERNE
EREENE D REWMATEME
MAR-AEEEHLZIEE
mkEE  AEBREBLEIR N
@ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ&:@ﬁ%ﬁ&
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e BEHHAREBE BX
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Tﬁ)ﬂéﬁa%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ““ﬁ n
B MR R

o RIESMAMABEARLK
e K

e RIFBEREMNTFEE

degrees Celsius. m
Through the implementation of the above initiatives, the ﬁﬂﬁﬁmiLTa AREE R
Group’s employees’ awareness increased. The Group’s BEMNEBEFARS A&EH
energy consumption performances were as follows: geiR /ﬁ FEEBAT:

Energy types Unit Consumption
BERER By HFE

2020
S L

Direct energy consumption

BEEERHEE

Petrol MWh 99.01
2 KRB

Indirect energy consumption

BEEFUE

Purchased electricity MWh 2412
HMNEE S K EL B

Total energy consumption MWh 123.13
RREARE I E B

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 513
BERERARE KRR EE
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Water Management

With an aim to promote efficient use of precious water
resource, the Group follows the “Water Management
Regulation” at its headquarters and manufacturing
facility. All departments are responsible to maintain good
conditions of the water supply facilities. Any leakage and
damage of the water supply facilities should be reported
to the maintenance team immediately for replacement
or repair to avoid water wastage. Water— saving posters
are placed in workplace, particularly in the Group's
toilets, pantry and cleaning facilities so as to increase the
employees’ awareness on water conservation.

During the Reporting Period, there was no water
consumption data maintained by the Hong Kong
headquarter office as the water charges are borne by the
landlord. In view of our operating locations, the Group
does not encounter any significant issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the business nature of the reported segment, we
do not consume significant amount of packaging materials
for product packaging.

The Environment and Natural Resources
Although the core business of the Group has remote
impact on the environment and natural resources, we
recognise the responsibility in minimising the negative
environmental impacts of our business operations in order
to achieve sustainable development for generating long-
term values to our stakeholders and the community as a
whole. We regularly assess the environmental risks of our
businesses, and adopt preventive measures as necessary
to reduce the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant
laws and regulations.
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Indoor Air Quality

Indoor air quality in our workplace is regularly monitored
and measured. We maintain indoor air quality by installing
air purification equipment in workplace and cleaning air-
conditioning systems regularly to filter pollutants and dust.
Green plants are also placed in offices to improve the
overall air quality.

Green Working Environment

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented
the concept of green environmental protection in the
operation of office areas, focusing on improving the office
environment, which aims at reducing the emissions of
its own office operations and improving the efficiency of
the use of resources and energy. There is no significant
waste of natural resources in the Group'’s business. It also
introduces energy-saving equipment in its office, such as
multi-functional photocopiers (with printing, scanning and
fax functions) that meet efficiency standards to promote
green office and reduce energy consumption.

B. SOCIAL

B1. Employment

Human resources are the foundation in supporting
the development of the Group. The Group treasures
employee’s talent, and recognises it as the most valuable
asset of the Group. The Group has formulated the
Human Resources Policy to fulfil its vision on people-
oriented management. The captioned policy is formally
documented in the Staff Handbook, covering employment
practices, equal opportunity, labour rights, training and
development and occupational health and safety. We
review and update the relevant policies regularly in
accordance with the latest laws and regulations.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with employment related
laws and regulations that would have a significant impact
on the Group. Such laws and regulations include but are
not limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong,
the Labour Law and the Labour Contract Law of the PRC.

Employment Practices

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group seeks to build an elite workforce by recruiting
outstanding employees. We adhere to the principles of
transparent and fairness to adopt a robust recruitment
process based on merit selection against the job criteria
applied. Recruitment of individuals are based on their
suitability for the positions and potential to fulfil the
Group’s current and future needs, regardless of their race,
gender, religion, physical disability, marital status, sexual
orientation, etc.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities for outperforming employees through
an open and fair assessment system so as to explore
their capability, assist them on career development and
contribute to the Group’s sustainable growth. Staff
performance reviews are carried out regularly to assess
employees’ work performance based on the principle of
meritocracy, talents and competitiveness on an open and
fair basis.

Furthermore, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal
of employees under any unreasonable basis, and exit
interviews are required to be conducted with the resigned
staff to collect opinions for any possible improvements on
the Group’s policies.
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Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system to employees.
Employees of the Group are remunerated according
to their performance and experience. Remuneration
packages include attractive wage, fixed working hours,
comprehensive insurance coverage (e.g., medical
insurance or “Five insurance and one fund”), overtime
compensation and allowances, etc. The Group reviews
the remuneration packages annually to ensure they are
up-to-date and competitive enough to attract and retain
talents. The Group’s employees are entitled to other
additional holidays such as maternity leaves, paternity
leaves, marriage leaves and compassionate leaves apart
from annual leaves. For employees with outstanding
achievements and performance in various aspects and
units of works, monetary incentives and promotions will
be provided.

Staff Well-being and Communication Channels

The Group places emphasis on its employees’ well-being
as it is crucial to the personal health and development of
the staff, improve the staff productivity and performance at
work, as well as enhancing the employees’ loyalty and the
engagement level to the Group ultimately. Thus, the Group
strives to encourage and promote work-life balance to our
employees The Group organised various activities such
as sport activities, sports fun day and festive celebrations
during the Reporting Period, aiming to inspire healthy
lifestyle, reduce stress levels from work and strengthen
the staff bonding.
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To further enhance the work satisfaction of the Group’s
employees, the Group has established various channels
to communicate with them. The employees are welcome
to make suggestions or complaints via various established
communication channels such as suggestion box,
letters, and direct report to supervisors or to the Human
Resources Department. Once complaints or grievances
are received, a designated team will handle and resolve
the problems promptly and the results will be distributed
to both complainants and the management. All the
information received from the employees is kept in
confidentiality. For the employees in the PRC, two-way
communication channel with the senior management
is provided through the Labour Union to express their
views on the existing management approaches and make
recommendations for improvement.

Diversity, Equal Opportunity and Anti-discrimination
The Group is committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in which
all can thrive. The Group was dedicated to provide
equal opportunities in all aspects of employment and
maintaining workplace that are free from any forms of
discrimination and harassment against any individual on
the basis of race, religion, colour, gender, physical or
mental disability, and age, place of origin, marital status,
and sexual orientation.

The Group also has zero tolerance in any forms of sexual
harassment or abuse at workplace. Any employee who
is intimidated, humiliated, bullied or harassed (including
sexual harassment) may report to the employee’s
representative, or file complaints directly to the
management representative or the general manager, and
we will take serious approaches to resolve these issues
upon receiving the said complaints.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 24 ful- RZ-ZT=ZFTF+=—_A=+—H £K&H
time employees based in Hong Kong. The following table HE&EA KB A24L 2 HES - T RHA
shows employees’ gender diversity and age group of the  RANEEE B MERIZ o/t M Fiz 485 o
Group.

Total Employees by Gender Total Employees by Age
RMRIB S NESRH RFRIATNEESLH

D

Male ™ Female Under 30 years old  ® 30-50 years old
B gegicd 308 AT 30-505%

Over 50 years old

508% A £

The employee turnover rate by gender and age group is &M BRI R FEHARIE D HE B R K0

as follows: ™

Gender Bl

Male Bt 44%
Female 4 30%
Age Group F 4 5l

Under 30 years old 305 A T 0%
30 to 50 years old 30E505% 30%
Over 50 years old 5085 A £ 73%
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B2. Health and Safety

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group prioritise safety at work to safeguard the
well-being of all its employees. In order to accomplish
the ultimate goal of zero-accident in the workplace, the
safety and health management system was implemented
to effectively control safety hazards and risks posed to
the employees and the premises, as well as fulfilling the
legal requirements such as Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance in Hong Kong, Work Safety Law and
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases Law
of the PRC in order to implement safety production and
operation in its manufacturing facility and headquarter
office thoroughly.

The Health and Safety Committee conducts safety risk
identification assessments at a regular time interval to
evaluate the risks levels and hazards exposure towards
workers in the workplace. Relevant safety procedures,
working instructions, machines and equipment
maintenance safety guidelines, in-house safety rules
and suitable personal protective equipment provision
have been implemented to avoid, minimise and mitigate
the safety risks in the workplace. To ensure that safety
control measures are effectively maintained, daily safety
inspections are conducted

Maintaining a safe working environment requires the
cooperative efforts among the Group and all employees.
The Group strives to raise the employees’ safety
awareness and equip the workers with knowledge on
working safely. A compulsory safety and health training
is offered by the Group to all new employees before they
commence work in manufacturing facility. Furthermore,
internal OHS training courses with specific topics are
provided to all workers in regular time intervals so that
they are aware of the significance of work safety.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety
related laws and regulations that would have a significant
impact on the Group. Such laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC and
Production Safety Law of the PRC.

Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage
for its employees, including medical benefits and dental
benefits. The Group has also continued to organise work-
life balancing activities for employees and carry out other
activities to promote healthy living practices. The Group
also conveys information relating to health and safety to its
employees so as to raise their awareness of occupational
health and safety. During the Reporting Period, the
Group’s employees have attended an occupational health
talk on “Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work in a Hot
Environment”.

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) Prevention

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has complied with the public health and
safety measures from the Hong Kong government.
The Group has also promptly implemented new health
and safety measures in response to COVID-19, such
as making remote work arrangements and distributing
adequate surgical masks and hand sanitizer in the offices.
All personnel, whether employee or guests, entering
the Group’s premises is also required to have their
temperature recorded to prevent the potential spread of
the virus. Clear guidelines are also in place to respond to
situations where employees or their family members are
found to have contracted the virus.
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B3. Development and Training

The Group regards its staff as the most important
asset and resource. The Group recognises the valuable
contribution its talents made to the continuing success
of the Group. The Group is committed to inspiring its
human capital towards delivering excellence and strive
to create an intellectually-stimulating environment within
which employees do not only develop basic skills and
knowledge but also specific talent and ability.

In order to retain talents and maintain the Group’s
competitive edge in the industry. The Group seeks to
empower employees by providing suitable on-the-job
and external training programmes to further nurture their
professional knowledge and personal goals for continuous
career development. According to the Group’s Training
Management Procedure, the Group identifies the training
needs of staff members depending on their positions
and career levels, and tailor make an annual training
programme for staff skills and knowledge advancement,
following the Group’s Training Management Procedure.
The Group conducts regular reviews to evaluate the
effectiveness and suitability of training, aiming to
make adjustment or improvement for further training
opportunities where necessary.

All new employees are offered to join an orientation
training programme, which covers the topics on the
Group’s business profile and organisation, employees’
welfares and obligations, OHS knowledge, is offered to all
new hirers within three months upon their arrival. Besides,
the Group regularly provides regular internal on-the-job
training with assessment to all existing employees at
different levels or departments to suit the operation needs.
To encourage life-long learning, the Group offers financial
subsidiaries to eligible employees and attends external
training courses in order to pursue their professional
development.
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B4.

During the Reporting Period, we have organised both
internal and external training courses for employees. Such
training courses cover topics including but not limited
to industrial updates, compliance matters, occupational
health and safety, etc.

Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by laws and regulations.
The Group strictly complies with local laws and prohibits
any child and forced labour employment. The Group’s
Human Resource and Administration Department is
responsible to monitor and ensure compliance with the
latest and relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child
labour and forced labour.

To combat against illegal employment of child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, personal data are
collected during the recruitment of process to assist the
selection of suitable candidates. The Human Resource
and Administration Department also ensures identity
documents are carefully checked. If the violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of circumstances.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any material non-
compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group. Such laws and regulations include but are not
limited to the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong and
the Labour Law of the PRC.
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Labour Rights

The Group has zero tolerance towards child labour and
forced labour in the workplace. By strictly following the
relevant local labour laws and ordinances, the Group
forbids employment of any persons who are under
the age of 16, and other unlawful form of labour. All
employees can exercise their freedom to decide their
careers and terminate their employment with proper
notifications or pay in lieu of notice. The Group also
ensures its staff works consensually, including overtime
work and disapprove any forced labour behaviour in the
workplace, as well as protecting their freedom and rights
of association and collective bargaining.

The Group clearly explains to all applicants about its
stance on child labour and force labour during the job
interview to prevent any recruitment of child labour
and forced labour. The identity, employment eligibility
prove and academic qualification of job candidates are
examined and verified thoroughly by its Human Resources
Department before the job is offered. In case any child
or forced labour is discovered, the Group will stop all the
work of the identified child or forced labour immediately
and offer medical checks and treatment where
appropriate. Investigation will be carried out subsequently
to find out the root cause of child or forced labour
employment and revise the employment management
procedure whenever possible to plug the loophole.

In addition, the Group requests its suppliers to maintain
the same labour standards when conducting business
with the Group and regular assessments will be
carried out to evaluate whether the suppliers meet the
abovementioned labour requirements. The Group will
refuse to have business partnerships with the suppliers
who violate the labour standards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify
any legal case regarding to the use of child labour and
forced labour had been identified.
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B5. Supply Chain Management

In accordance to the Group’s procurement policy,
new suppliers are required to fill in the pre— qualified
questionnaire to reveal their competency in the following
areas: 1) Production capability; 2) Management of quality
assurance, safety and environmental compliance; 3)
Partnerships; 4) Process on materials procurement; and
5) Practices on corporate social responsibility for our
assessment. Only those suppliers fulfilling all the above
requirements can be qualified as approved suppliers.

Regular performance assessments with all suppliers,
including on-site inspections, are implemented to
monitor and evaluate their continuous performances to
ensure suppliers’ performance meet required standards,
When any non-conformities are identified by the Group
based on the assessment findings, the Group will issue
corresponding areas-for-improvement reports to the
suppliers and request rectifications or taking corrective
actions for improvement under the grace period.
Those suppliers who are consecutively fail to fulfil the
requirements will contribute to the disqualification from the
Group’s approved supplier list.

With an aim to promote the values of social responsibility
and sustainability to the Group’s suppliers, the suppliers
must follow the Group’s Supplier Code of Business
Conduct and associated practices (e.g. labour practices,
legal compliance, anti-corruption and anti— bribery and
data protection etc.) in the business dealings. All suppliers
are required to complete a self- assessment survey of
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) performance,
which will be evaluated by the Group’s procurement team
annually. Employees and other individuals with an interest
with the suppliers will not be allowed to participate in
relevant procurement activities.
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Green Purchasing

The Group is committed to selecting the environmentally
friendly products with competitive prices and good
quallity, in order to safeguard end-users’ health and safety,
to prevent pollution and to efficiently use the natural
resources. The Group is dedicated to considering the
products’ life cycle and select the raw materials, sub-
assemblies and parts that are eco-friendly, hazardous
substance free or emitting smaller toxic substances during
installation, use or upon disposal for manufacture. Vendors
are required to provide proves (e.g. laboratory testing
reports and product specifications etc.) or evidence
showing the supplies are all in compliance with the
national regulations and international industrial standards
such as Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
(“WEEE"), Restriction of Hazardous Substances (“RoHS”)
and Registration Evaluation Authorisation and Restriction
of Chemicals (“REACH?).

The Group requires all departments to take into account
environmental considerations and search for the products
with high recycled content, with greater durability or with
greater water and energy efficiency when purchasing
office appliances, machines and equipment for daily
operation, in order to optimise the resource efficiency and
minimise pollutions and waste generation.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing reliable products and
services by offering sustainable and responsible platforms
and services, as well as protecting the interests of clients.

Product Quality

The Group has established a set of comprehensive quality
control procedures to address the potential risks and
opportunities of product quality and safety issues along
the production chain, securing all products are aligning
with the highest quality standard.
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The Group has also implemented various standardised
management procedures to carry out stringent quality
assurance inspections along the production cycle —
ranging from incoming materials checks, manufacturing
process inspections to final products examination based
on the latest national regulations and international
industrial standards. The effective in-house quality control
system and regular sampling checks allow the Group to
identify the quality problems immediately and take prompt
corrections and preventive actions in order to maintain
the product quality and prevent the severe defects of
final products during the manufacturing processes. The
Group’s final product quality assurance examination
ascertained the goods are free from defects and with
proper safety labelling and packing, and meet the required
product specifications before delivery.

The Group has arranged on-the-job training and external
training related to quality management to our workers to
build up their capability and ensure they understand our
requirements on quality assurance to resolve the quality
and technical problems in work. Thus, the effectiveness of
the quality control can be secured.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations concerning advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress that would have a significant impact
on the Group. Such laws and regulations include but
are not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
of Hong Kong and the Product Quality Law of the PRC.
Moreover, disclosure on the number of products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
was not applicable due to the Group’s business nature.
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Customer Service

In order to enhance customer satisfaction, customer
feedback and opinion surveys can serve as a driver to
refine the products, services and management systems or
processes. Hence, the Group solicits customer feedback
through annual customer satisfaction survey which allow
the Group to understand their needs and expectations.
Based on the survey results and the comments or
suggestions offered by the respondents, a customer
satisfaction analysis report is prepared to further review
the strengths and weaknesses of the Group and identify
the room for improvement. Therefore, the Group can
focus on addressing customer needs and enhancing
customer satisfaction.

In event of communications or complaints received
from customers regarding to the product quality and
schedule of product delivery, the Marketing Department
will promptly follow up and attend to the concerned
customers by following our Customer Complaint Handing
Procedure. The Group will conduct investigations to
confirm the nature of the complaints subsequently.
Relevant root-cause analysis will be conducted for
the confirmed cases by the responsible department,
where corrective actions will be carried out to avoid
the recurrence of the cases. The Group is committed
to replying to the complainants within three working
days as per the Group’s performance pledge. During
the Reporting Period, no products and services related
complaints were received.

Privacy Protection

The Group will store all customers’ tangible and intangible
assets and information (e.g. sample raw materials, sub-
assemblies and mould etc.) in designated area with
proper labelling and kept in confidentiality. All the assets
and information can only be accessed and handled by the
Group’s authorised personnel for operational purposes
and staff members are forbidden to copy, transfer and
disclose any information, particularly intellectual property
and customers’ personal data, to any third parties without
prior consent from the customers.

B HERETLES

EFER%
RITRBEFPREE BEFR
BRERAMERICGEREM R
BREEBRKRIZNES) S
At AEBBBFEETF W
EEREHKREPRE AR
AREEENTERENFREK
HE-FMENFEERER
MERENERIEIRET
FPREEIMMRE NE—F
BEEAKENES RSB MU
RBRIATEESEZNZEM - F
b ARBREATINERE
FREEMEAEPMEE

MAEBEKIEFRERELE
MEMRNERROKEHK
FEHEFI S RRE PR
B ¥R AZ 7 N B BRAE 3P BT AR R
BEP AKBEBEERKETAS
ARE RIS - B & 28T
1 93 AT P R RRAB T 3% A B AR B
RARE - I 2RERAY IE 15 5 A
WRBRBEEBRUBR K&
B 2 R B AR B ) IR A5 AR
R=ZEIFEALRBRFE-
A ¥ B - 9 U B AE f) R
7 an S AR 75 AR R A 5

LRRE

EFMMBARREREEN
KER (Plantkam R # - 48
HRBEASF)BHHEENRF
FRAAEEF RN ETE R
WRZ -FAEEENMNERHER
EERNAAKENREA
BETHFRREE-TEAR
THEAREEFPELEREREM
F=TER EHLRFEELTM
ERLERANBEEREP
EAEF

SHREEEBEERAT | 2020 F ik

(4!



72

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HERELRE

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group consults legal advice from solicitors for
drafting patent licence agreements or service contracts to
prevent any infringement of intellectual property rights (i.e.
trademarks, patents and designs) as well as ensuring all
business activities are in compliance with all the national
laws and regulations such as the Patent Law of the PRC
and the Implementation Rules of Patent Law of the PRC).
There is no infringement on intellectual property rights
during the Reporting Period.

The Group strictly adheres to regulatory requirements
on data privacy through fulfilling high security and
confidentiality of personal data privacy protection. We are
committed to maintaining and protecting personal data,
and have established an internal policy to govern the
collection and handling of personal data.

Investor Protection and Education

The Group has established procedures relating to the
services and products provided. We conduct the “Know
Your Clients” (“KYC”) procedures and assessment
processes to understand and evaluate clients’ financial
background, trading experience and risk tolerance level
prior to providing clients the type of financial services or
products that suit their needs.

The Group is committed to providing clear and balanced
information to clients. The Group has established a
classification system that classifies the capability and
intentions of investors. The Group categorises clients into
professional investors and retail investors based on the
standard of their financial knowledge. We will in particular
protect retail investors by conducting risk evaluations,
and classify and grade the investors based on the risk
tolerance evaluation results.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a corporate culture of high
integrity is the key to its continuing success, therefore
we value the importance of anti-corruption work and are
committed to building an incorruptness and transparent
corporate culture.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly
complied with all applicable laws and regulations, as well
as guidance from various regulatory bodies, including
the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”). The
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with related laws and regulations of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering that would have a significant
impact on the Group. Such laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Criminal Law of the PRC, Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the PRC and the Company Law of the
PRC.

Anti-corruption

The Group strives to achieve a high standard of ethics
in our business operations and fraudulent acts such as
corruption, bribery, and collusion are strictly prohibited.
Employees should comply with the Code of Conduct in
performing business activities, and they should consult the
management if they suspect any professional misconduct.
The Group has circulated the Code of Business Conduct
which has a dedicated section on anti-corruption,
which defines and restricts the code of conduct of our
employees in this regard. Employees should also declare
any conflict of interest under their job responsibility which
may impair the integrity of work.
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BS.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
for reporting any potential fraudulent cases and
management is responsible for the investigation and
resolution. To further mitigate business frauds, an Ethics
Committee is established to handle the cases in a timely
manner. Dedicated investigation team is nominated and
deal with the case to ensure the independence and the
reliability of the investigation results. The whistle-blower will
receive the result of the investigation within two months. If
discovered the personnel who was suspected of violating
any laws in corruption or participating in other unlawful
activities upon the internal investigation, the cases will be
further handed over to the relevant justice authorities for
relevant legal actions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any breaches of relevant laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering and the
Group confirmed that no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group and the
employees detecting potential deficiency, and identifying
areas of improvement.

Community Investment

Community Investment

The Group is committed to emboldening and supporting
the public by means of social participation and
contribution as part of our strategic development. We
strive to nurture the corporate culture and practices of
corporate citizen in the daily work life. To fulfil its corporate
social responsibility, the Group focuses on inspiring its
employees towards social welfare concerns.

The Group will formulate the community investment
policy with strategies that linked with the local concerned
issues and leverage the Group’s business competency
and resources for supporting our communities. Apart
from these, the Group also aims to continue to enlarge
the employee participation in various voluntary and
charitable activities so as to exert our cares about the
underprivileged ones in the community, which will enable
us to better shoulder our corporate responsibilities and
create benefits to the society.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX ERABERZFERLT (R

OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG B-HakERBERES) RE
LIMITED &5
Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures
and KPIs
FTESHE-EH- it 3-8 1
—REBERBEREN
BE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 Ry
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
—PRIREE EABERIAERBER mMKR T BEBY
BELEEEEVMELRN:
(@) the policies; and
@ B &
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.
b)) BTEHBITABERZENEBZED KRG
ol
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions  Emissions
BASRAB IR IRAT A data. BER
PR R AR BE R
KPI A1.2 GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and intensity. Emissions — Emission Control
RSB IR IRAL.2 MERBAEYRE (UHEGE) REE - HER A — e a5
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and ~ Not applicable — Explained
RASRAE B IRA1.3 intensity. TEm—omeE
FEEBEEEVEE (UBEHE)REFE-
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)  Emissions
FAREBIEIEA14 and intensity. — Waste Management

PMELABREREMEE (LEAE) REE- B —BEEYE R
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures

and KPlIs

FTEHE EH- Rt
—REBEREAREN

E&E
KPI A1.5
PR E M IEIRALD

KPI A1.6
FABENUIEIRA1.6

Description of reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
RIUREESESNEENIAERR-
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
MlEIBEEEREEREEYN L RIEEE
ENEBRFIEHRR-

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EHA2 : EREA

General Disclosure

— BB

KPI A2.1
B8 S 4B R 12 A2.1

KPI A2.2
RS A M IEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3
FARENUEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
R SRAE IR IZA2.4

KPI A2.5
FABENUIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERAER (BIEREIR K REMEME) K
%o

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type in total and intensity.

REAEDNEERKEZEREEREE

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKENTE-

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
il g IR (52 A R 5T 8 R PG AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

ot SKEGE R KR _ BRI B (T ERE - AR
K et &l R PG R o

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and with reference to per
unit produced.

S mAMTABEMENGEE (AEGHE) RE4E
EBMNERE-
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures
and KPIs

FTEHE -EBH- Rt B89
—REBEREAREN
BE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3  RERRAAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant The Environment and

— R impact on the environment and natural Natural Resources
resources. RIFERRAEIR
BEZETAHRERRABEREKNERTZEN
B e

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities ~ The Environment and

A H2 45 IR IR AS.1 on the environment and natural resources and Natural Resources
the actions taken to manage them. — Indoor Air Quality,
B EBEHHRERRAERNEATZE R Green Working Environment
ERBEREETENTH- RIERRAARER—EA

ERER BETIERE

Aspect B1: Employment
EBmEB1 : E&

General Disclosure Information on: Employment
— PRI EE B MR E BERES TESS -RH- ERE
FTE#E Zb RERIAREAFSREARN
HY :

(@) the policies; and

@@ BZE: &

(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and
welfare.
b) BETFHBITAFBERTZEOMBMED KRR
BVERL o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age Employment
B $1 48 IR 1RB1 .1 group and geographical region. 1Ef%
BHR - EEEE  FRAMNKMERESHNET
o

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
B MIEIEB1.2 geographical region. 1E(E
AR F BRI R E B S B B Rk X -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures
and KPIs

FTEHE EH- Rt - 1
—REBEREAREN
BE

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
BHEB2 : #EREZE

General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety
—MRIRER FRARMLZE2IHRREAREEERABRENLTE REHETSE
=H:
(@) the policies; and
@ BoR:R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

b) BTFHBEITAGERZENMEBED RRH
AR o

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : & K%l

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and Development and Training
—MRIRE skills for discharging duties at work. Description of 2 & [ 1% 3l
training activities.
BRRTEE BT TIERE A B MR IBUR -
R IE S -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EEB4 : 35 T XA

General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards

—RWE BRAMLEET RRHSTH: BT AR

(@) the policies; and
@ BoR: R

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

b) BTFTHBITAGERTZENMBBEL RRH
BE Ko

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : ftFEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social Supply Chain Management
—RRIRER risks of the supply chain. HEEER
EEHEENRE R SRERBE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures

and KPIs

FTESHE - -EH- it B8, 88
—REBERBEREN

BE

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[BEB6 : EmERE

General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility
— PRI EE FHEFMEHER RRBORREELZS BE F EmBE

BEMBEEARMRITEDN

(@) the policies; and

@@ BE: &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods

of redress.
b) BTFHBITAFERTZEOMEMED KRR
AR -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped Product Responsibility
B R 4E R 12 B6.1 subject to recalls for safety and health reasons — Product Quality
EERCEXERRBPAZHEREAME ExnET-ExEE
EE B 5t
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints  Product Responsibility
B4R MIE1EB6.2 received and how they are dealt with — Customer Service
BREEARERRRBHORFEE AREEFE EnEA-EFPkR%
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and Product Responsibility
FA$ 45 IE1RB6.3 protecting intellectual property rights — Protection of Intellectual
il EEERRENSEREBED Property Rights
EmBT - HBEERE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall ~ Product Responsibility
AR UIEIRB6.4 procedures — Product Quality
il E Sk EBRERERDKERF Enaf-EREE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and Product Responsibility
BB MIEIEB6.5 privacy policies, how they are implemented and — Privacy Protection
monitored ERET-ALBRE
%aa;_/ﬁ BEERHRIE RALBEUR - LARABEE#IT
RERRFIA
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Subject Areas, Aspects, Description Section/Declaration
General Disclosures
and KPIs

FTEHE EH- Rt
—REBEREAREN
BE

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBHEB7 - RES

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption

— R BEAM LB - IR - BRF R REAY - RES

(@) the policies; and

@ BZE: K&

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
b) BFHBETABERZENEBED KRG
AR o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding Anti-corruption
B $ 48 IR 1R BT .1 corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its K&’5

employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
REFANHETASIHEEREVEEENE
IRARMHE B RFAER-
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and Anti-corruption
RA 84S WUEIERT .2 whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are XR&)5
implemented and monitored.
e R R RET A RBBRITRER
% e
Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : #EBIRE

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand ~ Community Investment
—RRIR R the needs of the communities where the issuer HERE

operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
B[R ER T REEMEMRFTEZMNHER
HEBEHGERBLENGABOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

|IBDO

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
|
BEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 EETHERI115E
{8E : +852 2815 2239 KL AI>2548
www.bdo.com.hk
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUPERACTIVE GROUP BEBILCESREERARARR

COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Superactive Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (herein referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
90 to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Impairment assessment of licenses and goodwill
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”)

(Refer to note 17 and the Group’s accounting policies set out
in note 3 Goodwill, note 3 Impairment of non-financial assets
(excluding goodwill) and critical accounting estimates and
judgements set out in note 4)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had licenses and goodwill of
HK$25,358,000 which are allocated to the CGUs of money lending
business, regulated financial services business, electronics products
and property development and management segments for annual
impairment assessment.

The Company’s directors have concluded that there was no
impairment loss on licenses and impairment loss on goodwill
amounted to HK$8,271,000 in current year (2019: no impairment
loss on licenses and impairment loss on goodwill amounted to
HK$10,758,000). This conclusion was based on the impairment
testing carried out by the management for these CGUs as set
out in note 17. The impairment assessment was prepared in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policies which are set out
in detail in note 3 Goodwill and note 3 Impairment of non-financial
assets (excluding goodwill). The calculation of recoverable amount,
which is the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell,
involved significant judgement and assumptions with respect to the
determination of the pre-tax discount rates and the estimation of
the underlying future cash flows.

We identified the impairment assessment of licenses and goodwill
of the relevant CGUs as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and because
the impairment testing involved significant management judgement
and estimates as explained above.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our audit team included our internal valuation expert. Our audit
procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment
above included:

—  Evaluating the models used by management in the value in use
calculations and where applicable, fair value less costs to sell,
for impairment assessment;

— Assessing the reasonableness of discount rates and growth
rates applied to the impairment assessment;

—  Challenging the reasonableness of other key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and industry;

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budget and considering the reasonableness of the budget;

—  Checking the value in use calculations and where applicable,
fair value less costs to sell, mathematically;

—  Performing sensitivity analysis including assessing the effect of
a change in the key assumptions to the recoverable amounts
of the CGUs; and

—  Considering the overall adequacy of the disclosures in respect
of impairment assessment included in the consolidated
financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and
loan receivables

(Refer to note 20 and note 22 and the Group’s accounting policy
set out in note 3 Financial Instruments — Impairment loss on
financial assets and critical accounting estimates and judgements
set out in note 4)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables
amounting to HK$36,640,000 and loan receivables amounting
to HK$302,382,000. The Group assessed impairment for these
receivables based on expected credit losses model. Loss
allowance for expected credit losses amounting to HK$6,901,000
and HK$83,874,000 respectively has been made for the trade
receivables and loan receivables as at 31 December 2020.

Assessing expected credit losses on trade receivables and
loan receivables is a subjective area as it requires application
of judgement and uses of estimates. Judgement is applied in
assessing whether the credit risk of the loan receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition and whether the
trade receivables and loan receivables are credit-impaired. In this
regard, management considers factors including those relevant
forward-looking information and how it has impact on the historical
data. These require significant judgement by the management.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
and loan receivables as a key audit matter due to considerable
amount of judgement and estimation being required in conducting
impairment assessment as mentioned in the foregoing paragraph.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Our response

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment of
expected credit losses on trade receivables and loan receivables
included:

—  Obtaining an understanding on the key controls over credit
risk assessment and how management estimates the loss
allowance for trade receivables and loan receivables;

—  Assessing the appropriateness of the loss allowance calculation
methodology used by the management;

— Testing the integrity of information used by management in
assessing the credit risk of individual customers, on a sample
basis, by comparing historical default rates to the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year;

— Evaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect of
the assumptions made, such as historical payment records,
correspondence on any disputes or claims with the customers
and subsequent settlement records; and

— Assessing the factors considered by the management for
determining whether the credit risk of the loan receivables has
increased significantly since initial recognition and whether
the trade receivables and loan receivables are credit-impaired
which include:

e  Challenging management’s consideration of other factors
including changes in repayment pattern of borrowers and
changes in value of collateral since initial recognition (if
applicable);

e Assessing how reasonably management has incorporated
in their assessment forward-looking information including
expected changes in economic and financial conditions
which is expected to cause a significant change in the
customers’ ability to meet their debt obligations; and

e  Checking subsequent settlement of the year end trade
receivables and loan receivables on a sample basis.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L 1% BB 3R

BAREREE (#A)

HMAH =&
I E IR B Y ol B E B AR e
WEFRHEREEERFGMRANE
ZiEF B

- THRHEERRFENBEREZER
B E A A FT R AE B AR R
WERS BB EE:

- AMEEREEMRAEEREITEE

HWRTAE:

- ERBLBERNTEEANPBSE
EREMNEREBR mEAREE
EARFAENEFPEERRNE
FHE TRt

- EBMBREFERENE AR
(B0 38 £ SRR 6 - B P o0 £
T4 o 1 R A 1 R R4 R
) - SHEEIR BB A (5 A
SR

- FEEEEETRUEREERR
B B R TR AR E & AR IE ANIA K
KB ZEANEBREREEEE
MERZENERE B:

s NETEEEZERHMEZ &
REFIAERERA AR B TIX
HREKREEKIRREBEES
(@A)

e HEEBEEERGAERIMER
ZRAELEEN BEESRS
HEFBITEKETNENE
PRER BB L E &I
MWIEMEE &

e MERENFRZIEWEZK

TR EWERESRZ ERRER
Bt

SHREEEBEERAT | 2020 F ik

85



86

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L 1% BB 3R

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process. The Audit and Risk Committee assists
the directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 3L 1% BB 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (Continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit and Risk Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Pak Ki

Practising Certificate Number P01330

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

REEgx

v = ?E ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE—_T-_TF+-_A=+—HULEE

2020 2019
el —T NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
hr=d FERT FHET
Revenue U &= () 101,129 184,812
Cost of sales SH & AR (58,862) (133,655)
Gross profit EH 42,267 51,157
Other net gains H A 25 558 6 9,619 11,115
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SR AR (1,743) (4,828)
Administrative costs T AR (52,884) (70,144)
Finance costs B ISR AR 7 (28,726) (31,217)
Impairment of assets BERE 8 (9,629) (10,758)
Net impairment loss on financial assets 4 &l & 2= i (B 5 18 )% 58 8 (63,525) (20,916)
Share of results of an associate i RN vl 14 60 (10,533)
Loss before tax bR % B ES 1B 8 (104,561) (86,124)
Income tax expense FrisBim 10 (1,588) (8,963)
Loss for the year FREE (106,149) (95,087)
Loss for the year attributable to: EaFAER:
Owners of the Company PAN/NEIEZE DN (108,257) (94,285)
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR i RS 2,108 (802)
(106,149) (95,087)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted (HK cents) EARREE (BW) 12 (5.33) (4.64)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HReEzEBaER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALFE

2020 2019
—ECRH —E-NF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
hr=d FERT FHET
Loss for the year FAER (106,149) (95,087)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk
Items that may be reclassified HEngeeE 7 H2
subsequently to profit or loss: BmoEHE :
Exchange differences arising from BMEBINEBEEZ
the translation of foreign operations MEHZR 27,445 14,456
Reclassification adjustments HENBARERHEZ
of reserves upon disposal of B OERE
subsidiaries 33 1,779 (2,395)
Other comprehensive income FRAHMEEWE
for the year, net of tax MNERBE 29,224 12,061
Total comprehensive income FREZEKREEHE
for the year (76,925) (83,026)
Total comprehensive income EEER2EKEEE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company IN/NEIE RPN (77,866) (82,878)
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 941 (148)
(76,925) (83,026)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKAR

As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
—E-BF —T-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LR =S & 13 317,019 334,838
Interest in an associate R—REEE QR 2R 14 153,580 150,349
Financial assets at fair value BAnBEREBE=RYEZ
through profit or loss EREE 15 7,020 22,624
Intangible assets mEEE 16 17,087 24,244
494,706 532,055
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 5,601 9,726
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 19 540,391 506,699
Trade and bills receivables FEWE SRR REREE 20 32,437 23,330
Prepayments, deposits and other ENFRE EER
receivables Hoth jE I FRIE 21 55,813 43,262
Loan receivables U E R 22 218,508 246,222
Restricted bank deposits Z PR HIER1T 17 K 23 1,890 2,340
Cash and bank balances IR & NMIRTT4E R 11,598 26,088
866,238 857,667
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables JERTE SRR R EAM
JE& 1~ kI8 24 164,487 166,167
Rental received in advance U & 17,124 7,740
Contract liabilities EHaE 25 3,672 3,095
Amount due to an associate JET— R B & R R IR 14 66,698 63,757
Amount due to a shareholder B — R AR R FKIA 26 33,646 1,129
Amounts due to JET IR AR M 2 UIE
non-controlling interests 26 2,530 3,006
Interest-bearing borrowings FHEER 27 198,562 270,401
Lease liabilities HEAEFE 28 272 581
Tax payable FERTFHIR 13,280 803
500,271 516,679
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 365,967 340,988
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 860,673 873,043
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e KR &

As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
el —T NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEER 27 300,390 232,148
Lease liabilities HEERE 28 188 22 416
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 29 1,515 1,515
302,093 256,079
NET ASSETS EEFE 558,580 616,964
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR&HE
Share capital (&N 30 203,257 203,257
Reserves fFE 1 31 344,344 422 210
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO ANTEEANELESR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 547,601 625,467
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 32 10,979 (8,503)
TOTAL EQUITY e 558,580 616,964

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
Company (“Directors” on 31 March 2021 and are signed on its

HNFOE04ENEAFHRERE RN
—F=ZA=t—BREARAESF
(E=DeHEARETE BHUAT

— =

behalf by: ATREERE:
YEUNG SO LAI LEE CHI SHING CAESAR
BEE ZER

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GoERERR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BHE-_T-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

Capital Non-
Share Share Other  redemption Capital  Translation (Accumulated controlling
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses)* Total interests

X (B3

kx  BfafE  ReRE BERE  EARE  RERE B8+ ax  FEREs
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TET TET TEx T TET AT TEx TiEn

At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-ZF-f-A 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 (1,200) (74,931) 625,467 (8,503) 616,964
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (108,257) (108,257 2,108 (106,149)
Other comprehensive Hit2Ek:

income:
Exchange diferences arising ~ REBHEREEL

from the translation of EiZE

foreign operations - - - - - 28,612 - 28,612 (1,167) 21,445
Reclassfication adjustments ~ HEMB AR %REREZ

of reserves upon disposal ENHERE

of subsidiaries (note 33) (GER) - - - - - 1,779 - 1,779 - 1,779

Total comprehensive FREANELE

income for the year - - - - - 30,391 (108,257) (77,866) 9 (76,925)
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMBAR - - - - - - - - 18,541 18,541
At 31 December 2020 RZB-%%

tZA=t-R 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 20191 (183,188) 547,601 10,979 558,580

* The total reserves at 31 December 2020 is HK$344,344,000 (2019: * R-ZE-_TEFE+_A=+—BzREERTA
HK$422,210,000). 344,344,0007 7T ( —ZF — N4 : 422,210,000
BIT) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEcEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

(Accumulated
Capital losses)/ Non-
Share Share Other  redemption Capital  Translation retained controling Total
capital premium* reserve” reserve” reserve’” reserve” profits* Total interests equity
(Rt
BX EE)/
BE REE  EnEE  BEEE  EARE  AEEET REEN ai FERER  ERER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE TR TER Fhx TEL TR TER FhL TEL TR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 (12,607) 19,354 708,345 (8,355) 699,990
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (94,285) (94,285) (802) (95,087)
Other comprehensive Hp2EKE:
income:
Exchange differences arising ~ REENEBELL
from the tranglation of ERER
foreign operations - - - - - 13,802 - 13,802 654 14,456
Reclassification adjustments &R BRAAREZ
of reserves upon disposal ERNAERE
of subsidiaries (note 33) (Kt333) - - - - - (2,39%%) - (2,395) = (2,395)
Total comprehensive FR2ENGLE
income for the year S S = 5 S 11,407 (94,285) (82,878) (148 (83,026)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-1%
+ZA=t+-H 203,257 476,989 40 1,442 19,870 (1,200) (74,931) 625,467 (8,503) 616,964
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HeaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
sl T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities: K& EZHELEZRESRE:
Loss before tax 00 S (104,561) (86,124)
Adjustment for: THIBR 2%
Interest income B A (5) (24)
Interest on bank borrowings and RITER KRB AR EAM
overdrafts and other borrowings a2z F B 27,033 27,784
Interest on lease liabilities HERBZHME 1,693 3,433
Share of results of an associate Bt DA 2 %6 (60) 10,533
Impairment of assets EERE 9,629 10,758
Fair value loss on financial assets BAnBEREBE=RYEZ
at fair value through profit or loss TREENAAEEE 15,604 3,462
Depreciation of property, Y- BEREETE
plant and equipment 22,129 23,098
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME BERREZ
equipment E5 18 - 68
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HEMEB A A2 Uk
(P 5E33) (13,827) (13,321)
Net impairment loss on financial assets TREERBEREFE 63,525 20,916
Impairment loss on inventories FEZREEE 432 767
Exchange differences fE =% 15 20,041
Operating cash flows before BEESRBAIZKERS
movements in working capital RE 21,607 21,391
Decrease in inventories FERL 4,340 4,324
Increase in loan receivables JE WL E SR8 hn (27,375) (36,414)
Increase in trade and other receivables JEUE 5 B8R 51 N H A U
FIEIE N (26,995) (12,781)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JEHE B ER R & E b fE
other payables RIEE I, OB d) 2,234 (41,305)
Increase in rental received in advance TE UL FE & 38 0 8,869 5,570
Increase in contract liabilities AHBREEN 620 1,236
Net cash used in operations EREBECBRACESTE (16,700) (57,979)
Income tax paid B TSR (2,568) (1,008)
Net cash used in operating activities K& FBHCHACHETEH (19,268) (58,987)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FelanER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRET THET

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash (outflow) /inflow on disposal
of subsidiaries (note 33)

Proceeds from disposal of property,

RETHEEZRERE:

BEWE WEMEE (4,378) (10,267)
2 FE 5 24
HEHBARZRE (GRt),/

mAEER (MIFES3) (293) 31,915

HEWE  BERREFHA

plant and equipment - 62
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank SRR BIERITIEFUR A (3 n)

deposits 450 (2,340)
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets & # /2 & & Fr {5 20 600 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETH (BH) BEEZ

investing activities REFRE (3,616) 19,394
Cash flows from financing activities: RE R E’J EEXZRERE
Proceeds from interest-bearing FT S SIS IR

borrowings 1,073 90,335
Repayments of interest-bearing BEFEER

borrowings (4,692) (27,054)
Interest paid on interest-bearing ATEERZENTE

borrowings (16,758) (27,183)
Repayments of principal portion of EBEEHEAE A D

lease liabilities (671) (1,208)
Payments of interest portion of XHHEEEEZHEHS

lease liabilities (1,693) (3,433)
Advance from a shareholder — % Hﬁ%Z%%& 32,517 977
(Repayment to)/advance from R RS GER) B

non-controlling interests (676) 107
Net cash generated from RMETECELEZESFHE

financing activities 9,100 32,561
Net decrease in cash and REeRESEENRDFE

cash equivalents (13,784) (7,032)
Effect of foreign exchange rates SN [ SR S 2 (706) 4,656
Cash and cash equivalents FHzReRASEED

at the beginning of the year 26,088 28,464
Cash and cash equivalents FRZAESREASEEY

at the end of the year 11,598 26,088
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESEBEYEHRIN:

cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances He NMIRIT 11,598 26,088
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
maMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020

EE

ZECTFF A=+ —HLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda. The principal place of its business is Room 1510,
15/F., West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
In the opinion of the Directors, at 31 December 2020, Super
Fame Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is the immediate holding company and Ms.
Yeung So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar are the ultimate
controlling parties of the Company.

The functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”). Each entity in the
Group maintains its books and records in its own functional
currency.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively include all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”) and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements also include applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair value. The
measurement bases are fully described in accounting policies
set out below.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

—REHR
RAABEBREGMA LB X
RERAF -ARBIFZMPERZ
3k A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda - B
FEEXMBAEETH @43168-
2005k 52 LA E 1518 1510F

ARBBENREBERARZABR
~R (XD ERET-EER
AR R-B-FF+-_A=+—8"
BEERERAR (—HAREBRE
TEESEMKIL 2 AR BRERE
BAR MG RBELLTEFEREE
RARRB)Z BEIERITT -

ARARNINEEEN2NEERE
(BT AEBRASERZH
AEMW LT AR K AC ek ©

WEEAMBBRRIRET BB
HEEA([FEMBHREEL])
(EPEREmEEREEMHRE
EH BBGER (BB FE
Al ERBREB ARG ZKE

REMBH - REMBHRRITEIE
ERZBRAES EWAA (T LW
AN ZBBERE -

AV BERREESR AN ERE
HETUARBERFEZERITER
e BEREFTEREEN T X EFTBUR
E31k



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of amended HKFRSs

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued a number of amended HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 Reform

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
. Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition

is on or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on
or after 1 January 2022.
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

J The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current and HK Interpretation

5 (2020), Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities
as current or non-current is based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period, specify that
classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a
liability and explain that rights are in existence if covenants
are complied with at the end of the reporting period. The
amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’
to make clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets or
services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence
of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020.
The revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2020) updates
the wordings in the interpretation to align with the
Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion
and do not change the existing requirements.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments and revision in the future will have an impact
on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended
Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Directors are currently assessing the impact that
the application of the amendments will have on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the acquisition
date a present obligation exists as a result of past events.
For a levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to
determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to
a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition
date. The amendments also add an explicit statement
that an acquirer does not recognise contingent assets
acquired in a business combination.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests
in the new associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements in future periods should such
transaction arise.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient
to lessees in accounting for rent concessions arising
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by including an
additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits
entities to elect not to account for rent concessions as
modifications. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the following criteria
are satisfied:

(@ the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (Continued)

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;
and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical expedient,
which means the lessee does not need to assess
whether the rent concession meets the definition of lease
modification. Lessees shall apply other requirements of
HKFRS 16 in accounting for the rent concession.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements in future periods should such
transaction arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform - Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform (the
“Reform”). The amendments complement those issued in
November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to contractual
cash flows in which an entity will not have to derecognise
or adjust the carrying amount of financial instruments for
changes required by the Reform, but will instead update
the effective interest rate to reflect the change to the
alternative benchmark rate; (b) hedge accounting in which
an entity will not have to discontinue its hedge accounting
solely because it makes changes required by the Reform,
if the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and (c)
disclosures in which an entity will be required to disclose
information about new risks arising from the Reform and
how it manages the transition to alternative benchmark
rates.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of

the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b) Amended HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to
derecognise a financial liability, explaining that only
fees paid or received between the entity and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
entity or the lender on other’s behalf are included.

e HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that
example.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. RAAFIRLIETE BT
MEER (&)

(b) © 28 ot e R 4 W2 18
HES %Hjiaiﬁﬁntifi—ﬂl (&)
ERMBREEN_-Z—N\F
Z_E-eFrERNE
BHBERRAEENERZ
S FUNNE

s FAEWBHEERAFIR
eMIA Eé JINE
EERIIERCHAER
ERP B MEERERE
B3.3.68x [10% | A& AT &
BRZBER YEEESE
EREBEERAZEAR
AR ZER (B
ERIERARKEMA
TN EZER) °

o BHEYVKIHEERE16
ME - HEFTE1318 5 -
MEraEEEHEABERE
SRS 2 B LABRR
ZEMFABEERZH
HAAMmAEEEREBR
EEEREZEMAIEER
Ee

EEEY BREAZZER
KT EHGEAMBBRRELEY
3%:0

SHREEEBEERAT | 2020 F ik

107



108

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Group made up to 31 December each year.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case
the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using
the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs
are deducted from equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continueq)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained
within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months from
the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition-date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner
as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of
non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interests’ share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in
those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ

FoTF A= t-ALFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements
of control.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

In the note to the consolidated financial statements that
discloses the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period.

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
not control or joint control over these policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amounts are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates’ net assets except that
losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020

3.

TESHBRBE (&)

/8 X 7]

RSNV RAN/NCIIR g R ek 7 3=
WIRE AN NI =BT EE AT
- AIARRRIEEHZEREA 8
WIEREANES  BRBIRERE A
] 5 &) [0 9 [ Fe B L B S A ) A
FEREENTZERR A ZE) DR
Y BE 77 o finf i IRAE ] s 1R B T
ZARAENEELBR R
I B HT P -

PIESBEARRRBRS & WA
KX ERERE AR -

ERBARARRMBRARZEE M
BHmEAMES REBARZKRE
REFNBR AL ADRUE B R IR IR AT R ©
RRRRH B AR REAR RS
HASR AT U Ko FE M B B Y B2 A B ©

R—EBE QT z2ER
BERREASEENUHERES

TENER WBARIENA
BERZEGZRIN-BEATENR
BERZERRERR I HREE
BUOROR TE B 3 3F £ i) 3 R 2 6
AFHR

BrE NRIIRAREIEAR B B
ERAB SR ATER MR ERK
T & 78 [ 7K 52 (B W P 1R P 2 B
ERREEFEED TURE I
BHAEERBERARZEREZE
BIremER  BRIFARTAEX

EER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interest in an associate (Continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in
the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in
profit or loss on the acquisition-date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment assessment, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount, and whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

ZoEE+_RA=+—-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
assessed for impairment before the end of that financial year.
When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwiil
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less costs to sell (if measurable) or its value in use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

e creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or service.

(@i

(ii)

(iii)

Electronic products

Customers obtain control of the electronic products when
the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised when the customers accept
the electronic products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable within
120 days.

Nursery education services/properties management
Revenue is recognised over time as those services are
provided. Payments received from customers are generally
paid in advance prior to the rendering of services. In
accordance with HKFRS 15, if there are obligations to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration from customer, an entity should
recognise contract liabilities.

Money lending

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Regulated financial services
Revenue from asset management services is recognised
over time as those services are provided. Invoices for
regulated financial services are issued on a semi-annual
basis and are usually payable within 60 days.

(v) Other income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
the dividend is established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements  Over the remaining unexpired term of the
lease or five years, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 33'/3%

equipment
Motor vehicles 10% - 25%
Plant and machinery 10% - 33'/:%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of
the lease term and the useful life of the underlying asset.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Properties held for sale

Properties for future sale in the ordinary course of business
are included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost comprises the consideration for
development expenditure (which includes cost of land use
rights, construction costs and capitalised interest) directly
attributable to the development of the properties.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HEZ

T_BE+-A=+—AILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group’s business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There is one measurement
category into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held
for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
investment-by-investment basis. Equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on trade
receivables and financial assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
of the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-month ECLs. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired
when: (1) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is

more than 120 days past due.

In respect of loan receivables, credit risk arises from a
customer’s inability and unwillingness to meet its financial
obligations to make timely payments under the loans the Group
provided. The Group has taken measures to identify credit
risks arising from loan business. The Group manages credit
risk through review and credit approval and post-transaction
monitoring processes which is performed by management.
The Group also demands certain borrowers to place collateral
at the time the loan agreement is entered into as securities of
loans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

During the post-transaction monitoring process, the Group
performs credit evaluations on customers periodically. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay.

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loan receivables
and interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECL model:

Stage 1:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment recognised on the basis of 12-month expected
credit losses (12-month ECLS).

Stage 2:

Loan receivables and interest receivables have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime expected
credit losses (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3:

Loan receivables and interest receivables that are in default
and considered credit-impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit-impaired).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The loan receivables are moveable between stages. For
instance, loan receivables originally classified at stage 1 should
be downgraded to stage 2 if events occur such as a significant
increase in credit risk. Loan receivables at stage 2 could be
upgraded to stage 1 if credit risk decreases and the criteria for
the determination of “a significant increase in credit risk” are no
longer met.

The Group recognises a loss allowance to different loan
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month or lifetime
expected credit loss based on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and whether the financial
instrument is credit-impaired. ECL is the result of discounted
product of the weighted average of “probability of default (PD)”,
“loss given default (LGD)”, “exposure at default (EAD)” under
the three scenarios, which are defined as follows:

Probability of default (PD) is the probability of default occurring
of a client and its assets in a given period of time in the future.

Loss given default (LGD) represents the percentage of amount
of loss to be incurred in the event of default to the total risk
exposure. It is expressed as the loss percentage per unit of
exposure which typically varies by nature of debtor, type and
seniority of claim and the availability of collaterals or other
credit enhancements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Exposure at default (EAD) represents the total amount of on
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure at the time of
default by debtor, reflecting the total amount of possible losses
likely to be incurred. In general, this includes the utilised credit
limit, interest receivable, the anticipated usage of unused credit
facilities as well as the related expenses to be incurred.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loan receivables are set out
in notes 22 and 39.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount
less loss allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. All the
Group’s financial liabilities are at amortised cost and are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

ZoEE+_RA=+—-HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials and, where applicable, direct costs and those
overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
E-F-RFTA=TALSFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
that obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Provisions are measured at the
Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to
present value where the effect is material.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under the Group’s accounting
policy. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent from those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Income Taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised
assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items recognised
directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to
a deferred income account and is released to the statement of
profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset
by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in the profit or loss for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at that date, and their income and expenses are
translated at the average monthly exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of
other comprehensive income (the translation reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have been
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated in Hong Kong dollars at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of whether they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to choose
not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/or
(i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12 months.
The lease payments associated with those leases have been
expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: () the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability; (i) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;
(i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. The Group measures the
right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement
of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring
the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a change
in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

License acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
The cost of license acquired in a business combination is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are assessed for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
and intangible assets not yet available for use are assessed
for impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are
assessed for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts. The accounting policy as set
out in “Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding goodwill)”
is adopted for impairment assessment of intangible assets with
finite and indefinite useful lives.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plans are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered services
entitling them to contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”), for employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a) () has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

() that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the Group’s
executive Director.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

The key accounting judgement is as follows:

Classification of properties held for sale

The Group has temporarily leased out its properties held
for sale (shop premises) but has decided not to treat these
shop premises as investment properties because it is not the
Group’s intention to hold these shop premises in the long-term
for capital appreciation or rental income. Accordingly, these
properties are still treated as properties held for sale.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The management of the Group reviews the carrying
amount of the inventories at the end of each reporting period,
and makes allowance for any inventory items identified to be
carried at a recoverable value that is lower than cost through
estimation of the expected selling prices under current market
conditions.

Impairment of properties held for sale

Management assessed the recoverability of the carrying
amount based on professional valuation of the fair value of the
underlying properties which involves, inter-alia, considerable
analysis of current market price of properties of a comparable
standard and location and a forecast of future sales based on
zero growth rate of property price. If the actual net realisable
values of the underlying properties are more or less than
expected as a result of change in market condition and/
or significant variation in the budgeted development costs,
material reversal of or provision for impairment losses may
result.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding
goodwill)

Management periodically reviews each asset for possible
impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. If such assets are
considered by management to be impaired or impairment
recognised is no longer required, the impairment required
or reversal of impairment previously recognised is measured
by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds or exceeded by the estimated recoverable amount
of the assets respectively. In determining the recoverable
amount, the Group seeks professional advice or makes use of
independent professional valuations as appropriate which are

based on various assumptions and estimates.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2020 was
HK$7,901,000 (2019: HK$14,458,000). Further details are set

out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of certain of the Group’s financial
assets utilises market observable inputs and data as far as
possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how observable
the inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

e |evel 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market
data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the below item at fair value:

—  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note
15)

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the applicable
note.

Impairment of trade and loan receivables
Management assesses the expected credit loss on trade and
loan receivables based on the lifetime ECLs and 12-month
ECLs respectively. Judgement is required in assessing
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provision may be required in future accounting periods.

4.

|
m
=

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_THF+-_A=+—HILFE

EREFHEET R E (&)

DNREFE
AEEETEREEZAAEME
FARENAMS AR AERE
B-AUNBEAAEBFENBAE
RIFEERM AT ERE AEN B
ZERENRTRAER([AAES
Rl

o FIRHEBEBENERMSZ
WECREHE)

o F2BIMBAENINZA
BREREERAE:

o FEI A EERBAEAL
FREMHBHE) -

BIEBE DR LR FRTIERE
AYZBRBRAAREELEAREZ
REFRBAERE-HEENTRH
FREERNEERE T IAER

REE

i

BRAMEFETHIER :

AERERIEZEME
MizE15

~—

BRLABRE A ARBZEFEEM:
ELEEAM -

BWE SRR R EREFREE
EREEDRIREHEBREEEER
128 AR EEREFAREES
ERRERERNEREEEE-
AHEE E B R RS R IR &5t kA
SERNESHNASRERAEL
H - fin (B 75 A R R AOR A & B
b ™ Bl 55 1% F & 3R EE 0 - R AT B
AN BROEF BB ELRIMERE-

SHREEEBEERAT | 2020 F ik

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continueq)

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate for
leasing

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable
inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Determination of lease term of contracts with
renewed options

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease term. In determining
the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal options
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances that
create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the
option, including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to the
Group’s operation. The Group assessed and concluded that
it is reasonably certain that the Group will exercise extension
options included in some of the lease arrangements. The
lease term is reassessed when there is a significant event or
significant change in circumstance that is within the Group’s
control (e.g. a change in business strategy). Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in subsequent
financial periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s segment information is based on regular internal
financial information reported to the Company’s executive
Directors and management, being the chief operating decision
makers, for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and their review of these
components’ performance.

The Group currently has five reportable segments. These
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies as follows: () manufacture of electronics products;
(i) provision of nursery education service; (i) money lending
business; (iv) property development and management
business; and (v) regulated financial services business.

The following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group’s reportable segments:
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2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with BRI E LRI E155%
customers within the scope of HEANRERPE L 2 W
HKFRS 15:
Electronics products — manufacturing & & & —
and sale of electronics products FEREEETFEM 55,005 131,861
Nursery education — providing HARHE —
nursery education for children BRERBNZHE 1,756 7,124
Property management — providing YIEEE—
management services REFRBPIREETERSE
for landlords and tenants 11,231 11,846
Regulated financial services — XAECRRE—
providing asset management REEEEERY
services 8,042 11,048
76,034 161,879
Revenue scoped out of HKFRS 15: &8 B 78 ¥R &5 X 81| 55 155F
& [E LA YN i 2%
Money lending & 25,095 22,933
101,129 184,812
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
The total presented for the Group’s operating segments
reconciles to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in
the consolidated financial statements as follows:

5 BaRksBEHNH)
REBEEE S EN S RABRIE
ERGAMBREN2 R = B8
BRBHENT -

140

Property
development Regulated
Electronics Nursery Money and financial
products education lending  management services
MEFRE ZHRE
EFEM NZHE W& RER SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
2020 “ECEF
Segment revenue SBWE 55,005 1,756 25,095 11,231 8,042 101,129
Inter-segment revenue AR E - - - - - -
Reportable segment revenue BEE e 55,005 1,756 25,095 11,231 8,042 101,129
Segment profit/(loss) AEEN/ (BB) (8,665) 6,841 (38,216) 1,504 (156) (38,602)
Other information: HitgH:
Additions to segment REZHBHRDEE
non-current assets 2,031 - 202 2,300 - 4,533
Net finance (credit)/charge BE(Ee) / RFE 32 1,659 5 0 - 1,692
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREHTE
plant and equipment 2,193 - 355 1,279 4 3,868
Income tax expense FIERAX 43 - 178 1,234 133 1,588
Net imparment loss on financial & B EEREESEFE
assets 306 3,576 55,089 2,829 1,725 63,525
Impairment loss on inventories  F&REEE 432 - - - - 432
Impairment of assets EERE 8,271 - - - - 8,271
2019 ZE-RE
Segment revenue Sk 131,861 7,124 22,933 11,846 11,048 184,812
Inter-segment revenue EiEl e - 1,047 - - - 1,047
Reportable segment revenue AR5 1Bl 3% 131,861 8,171 22,933 11,846 11,048 185,859
Segment profit/(loss) AEER/ (BE) (10,067) (3,835) (1,649) 1,043 (154) (14,662)
Other information: HitER:
Additions to segment REZOBRERDERE
non-current assets 10,702 - 1,624 436 19 12,781
Net finance (credit)/charge BE (KR BIFE 175 3,311 3 () (1) 3,483
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BEREEZTE
plant and equipment 3,583 - 214 1,215 69 5,081
Income tax (credit)/expense sk (B%)/BX (13) - - 8,875 101 8,963
Net impairment loss on financial & B4 E B EFEFE
assets () (113) 16,855 2,872 1,307 20916
Impairment loss on inventories  FEREEE 767 - - - - 767
Impairment of assets AERE 10,758 - - - = 10,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION W=k oEER (&)
(Continued)
2019
—ZE-NF
HK$’000
FET
Reportable segment loss AR E D EEE (38,602) (14,662)
Share of results of an associate AR — B & 1A L EE 60 (10,533)
Other net gains Hofth b 25 5 58 (14,726) (7,565)
Unallocated corporate costs (note) K2 Eo A (K i) (24,263) (25,654)
Unallocated corporate net finance ROBEEEREK AN FRE
cost (27,030) (27,710)
Loss before tax bR 5 Al E5 18 (104,561) (86,124)
Note: B3
The unallocated corporate costs mainly comprise staff cost (including Directors’ ROMEEXNAETERBREEINA(BEE
remuneration), legal and professional fee, exchange differences, depreciation EMe) FEERBEER EREZH -E
and office rental (short term lease). ERAERE (RHAL) -

2019
—E-NF
HK$ 000
FHET
Segment assets PHEE
Electronics products EFEm 45,451 46,396
Nursery education MARHE 444 5,679
Money lending WE 220,170 248,326
Property development and YR EAE R
management 602,847 551,113
Regulated financial services XRE R 24,051 25,596
Total reportable segment assets AR E D HEERE 892,963 877,110
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE
Interest in an associate R—EEERF 2w 153,580 150,349
Financial assets at fair value through &2 2A R ERIBZTIER 2
profit or loss EREE 7,020 22 624
Property, plant and equipment Y - R Rkt (FEREG))
(note (i) 208,629 318,137
Prepayments, deposits and TEfTFRIE - Tziz & KHAD
other receivables i3 145( 18 535 443
Others (note (ii)) HA ( Ffﬁ (i) 8,217 21,059
Total assets BERE 1,360,944 1,389,722

Notes:

(i) This mainly represents office buildings which are used as corporate head

office.

(i)  The balance mainly represents cash and bank balances retained at

corporate level.

%IE\IETE?JW UNCIECE =Y i /NN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Wk oBEER (&)
(Continued)
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Segment liabilities PEAEE
Electronics products EFEM 26,438 21,380
Nursery education MWAHE 2,738 31,893
Money lending A& 572 378
Property development and MEREANER
management 156,222 142,028
Regulated financial services XRECBRE 2,127 3,286
Total reportable segment liabilities AIRESEaEEE 188,097 198,965
Unallocated corporate liabilites Ko BEX¥AE
Bond payable FERHES 260,000 260,000
Other interest-bearing borrowings Hsr B A 237,902 242214
Interest payable FETF & 11,163 914
Fund contribution payable FERT RS HK 66,698 64,771
Others (note) Hh (FEE) 38,504 5,894
Total liabilities BfERHE 802,364 772,758

Note:

The balance mainly represents amount due to a shareholder and accrued

corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

The following provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

5 WHERkoEESR (#)

& & R
TREHRAEEZMWETIZE D (T
WEMZEKR)NKBEIIBELZ
Was oA

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERx FHET
The People’s Republic of China REAREME ([HE])
(“PRC”)
Mainland China AR K P 67,992 63,698
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B (b E) 33,137 33,981
101,129 97,679
United States of America (‘US”) %ﬂE:AKI?. ([Z=E]) - 64,320
United Kingdom HE - 18,990
Europe &M - 3,738
Others Hib - 85
101,129 184,812
Information about major customers 5F IE@F HNE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from three
customers (2019: two customers) (all in the manufacture of
electronics products segment) with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue for the year as detailed

BE_T_FTF+_A=1T—HL
FE- i’JP}ZE ETEMmEENEZ
ZRBP(ZE-NAF MEEFP)
X 5 U st i B AR 5 B A A W e Y

below: 10% - FEBAN T
2020 2019
—ECEH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FET
Customer A ZEA 19,162 N/A “1~ 3 A
Customer B EFB 17,573 19,437
Customer C =EC 12,542 N/A 3
Customer D =FD N/A 7E A 46,913
49,277 66,350
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

WERk o EER (#)

Wy 2% B 2 s 1

Property development Regulated

Electronics products Nursery education

and management

financial services

ETER HRBE

2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-FF MYkl — 25 Ryl
GUGHOON  HK$000 ICHNON  HK$'000
A7 TET TAR TaL

Timing of revenue recognition 4% R 7285

NERRNER

Z2-0F B RS CT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ZRESRBH
2019 2020 2019

2019
“F-0E

HK$'000
TEn

TEL TAR TAL

At a point in time RE—EREE 55,005 131,861 - = = - = 55,005 131,861
Over time FEREER - - 1,756 7,124 11,846 8,042 11,048 21,029 30,018
55,005 131,861 1,756 7,124 11,846 8,042 11,048 76,034 161,879

The following table provides information about trade and
bills receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers.

TRESEBRESAONEKE
SER BREBRADEENE
#e

Trade and bills receivables
Contract liabilities

BHaE

FEWE 5 Rk I R R IR

2020 2019

—E-EF —ZE-NF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FERT FHET
32,437 23,330

3,672 3,095

The contract liabilities mainly related to the advance
consideration received from customers. The Group has applied
the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its
contracts for sale of goods and services and therefore the
above information does not include information about revenue
that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts for sale of goods
and services which had an original expected duration of one
year or less.
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6. OTHER NET GAINS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

6. Hftz=FaE

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
hg=d FERT FET
Interest on bank deposit and RITHERREH 2T E
balances 5 24
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERE&EZ
plant and equipment &8 - 68)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR Z W 33 13,827 13,321
Rental income Ha WA 8,025 10,894
Government grant (note) BT (K5E) 985 1,067
Exchange differences ERER (15) (20,041)
Forfeiture of deposits from tenants ~ fAE MY B RN ERD
and property purchasers biegoia 320 6,595
Fair value loss on financial assets BARBEREBERIIERZ
at FVTPL CREEZARBEEE (15,604) (3,462)
Others HAtb 2,076 2,785
9,619 11,115
Note: et :

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received government
funding support of HK$910,000 from the Employment Support Scheme under
the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR Government. The
Group does not have any unfulfiled obligation related to this subsidy as at

31 December 2020.

BHE_ZTZ-_TF+-_A=+—HILFE K
SEWIEERREFAERHRAEES
BT [RELE] 53 BUR & € % $5910,000
BL-R_F_TF+-_A=+—H F&KH

WEEZHEEAMOTARETEE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MR

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZET-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET

Interest on bank borrowings and IRITERRIBITET AR

bank overdrafts and HEMERZFE

other borrowings 27,033 27,784
Interest on lease liabilities HERBEZHME 1,693 3,433
28,726 31,217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAX 8. BR¥AIEE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging: BREIRTE BRI A T KRR E
2
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FHET
Staff costs including Directors’ BIXA(BREESEMSE) :
emoluments:
Directors’ emoluments (note 9) EE=ME (MFE9) 934 662
Staff salaries, allowance and welfare & T 3B =B K 5& 7] 27,665 36,705
Retirement benefit scheme R FIFT B3R
contributions 1,384 3,451
Total staff costs BTN %R 29,983 40,818
Auditors’ remuneration ZH AN EN & 1,303 1,105
Cost of inventories recognised BRAIZHZFEKA
as expenses 42,251 119,676
Depreciation of property, Y- -BEREKEITE
plant and equipment (note 13) (BF5E13) 22,129 23,098
Exchange differences EHER 15 20,041
Short term leases expenses CHMHERX 322 3,571
Impairment loss on intangible mEEEREEE (HiEi16)
assets (note 16) 8,271 10,758
Impairment loss on property, M WEREREREEE
plant and equipment (note 13) (HM$5E13) 1,358 =
Impairment of assets BERAE 9,629 10,758
Net impairment loss on trade FEIE SRR BB EFHE
receivables (note 39) (B$5E39) 2,784 2,168
Net impairment loss on H iU R R EE 1B F 5
other receivables 5,652 1,892
Net impairment loss on loan FEWE SR ERBEFRE
receivables 55,089 16,856
Net impairment loss on financial TRIEERMBEEIEFE
assets 63,525 20,916
Impairment loss on inventories FEREEBE 432 767
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors are

as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

9. EXKkEEME

ENHENESEEZMEWT

BE_Z_2F+-A=t+—-HL
FE

ETCEE
Basic benefit
salaries and Benefits in scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses kind  contributions Tota
HExEé BB
ik 5§z 42 b BENEHN SR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TERT TET TERT TERT TERT
Executive Directors: WTES:
Ms. Yeung So Lai HRENT - 154 - - 8 162
Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FERRE - 154 - - 8 162
Independent non-executive Directors: B FFHTESE:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing BRELT 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Chow Wai Leung Wiliam RRREE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Leung Man Man PEREE 180 - - - - 180
610 308 - - 16 934
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continueq)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

9. EEREEME (&)

BE_ZT—NWF+=-A=+—81t
FE

Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and scheme
Fees allowances Bonuses  Benefits in kind contrioutions Total
EX5e BIER
ik R A7 ENER REET @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Executive Directors: BES:
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEERL - - - - - -
M. Lee Chi Shing Caesar FERRE - 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive Directors: BV 3FTES:
Ms. Hu Gin Ing Rt 250 - - - - 250
Mr. Chiu Sze Wai Wilfred BRERE(RZT-NE
(resigned on 30 May 2019) AA=THEE) 75 - - - - 75
Mr. Chow Wai Leung William BEREE 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Leung Man Man REREE(RZZ-1%E
(appointed on 17 April 2019) NA++REZRT) 127 S S S S 127
632 30 - - - 662

Note: Salaries, allowances and other benefits paid to or for the executive
directors are generally emoluments in respect of those persons’ other
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continuea)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Yeung
So Lai and Mr. Lee Chi Shing Caesar have waived part
of their emoluments in the amount of HK$6,438,000 and
HK$5,238,000 respectively (2019: HK$6,600,000 and
HK$5,400,000 respectively).

Save as aforesaid, no Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

No remuneration was paid by the Group to the Directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office during the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

For the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, none of them were directors of the Group (2019:
nil), details of whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the five (2019: five) highest individuals are as
follows:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

9. EEXEREEME (&)

HE-_ZT=-_TF+=-A=+—8H
HFE BEBZLIRFERLE
ERERSEBONE 28HA B
6,438,000/ 7t 15,238,000/ 7T (=
T — NF: 5 5l A6,600,0007% T &
5,400,000/ 7T ) °

BREXFEN BE_T_TF
E—F—-—NFt+=A :+—EIJL$
B HMEEENEXRBWEEM
M -

BE_T_FTF+_-_A=1T—HL
FE - AEBE Y ERE F M
YRR INASE HA AN £ [ i 1 82
BB E (22— NEF &) -

AEENAETRSHMA LB IE
AEBMER(ZT—NEF E) F
RS EBIEN L AL (=T
—NF:-RAB)ESFHALZHE
T

2020 2019

—EEE —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH T FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 4,402 4,753
Contributions to retirement benefit R RIS K 51 2 £t 5k

schemes 74 80

4,476 4,833
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EENEEME (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continueq)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZME DR THEA :

Number of individuals

AR

Nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 3

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 21,500,000 /& 7T 2 2
5 5

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior ENZENEREEEKECHME

management were within the following bands: DR TR -

Number of individuals

AE

Nil — HK$1,000,000 £ 1,000,000 /& 7T 5 6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10.

The income tax expense for the year comprises:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

FreBipx
REEFEHAZBE:

2020 2019

S22l ==

Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
O3 FiBT Fisn

Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax ~ BNHAT: 18 — & 76 R 1554

Charged for the year FABR (310) (101)
Current tax — PRC enterprise BVEARETE — R Bl (b %
income tax Fris i
Charged for the year FRMkR (809) (1)
(Under)/over provision in respect of BEFE (BETR),/
prior years BRERE R (469) 68
(1,278) (103)
(1,588) (204)
Deferred tax EETIE
Charged for the year FAMR 29 - (4,986)
Under provision in respect of BEFERETR
prior years 29 - (8,773)
- (8,759)
Income tax expense FriS i X (1,588) (8,963)

PRC enterprise income tax has been provided on estimated
assessable profits of the subsidiaries’ operations in the PRC at
25% (2019: 25%).

In accordance with the new two-tiered profits tax rates regime
with effect from the year of assessment 2018/19, Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 16.5%),
except for the first HK$2,000,000 of the qualified entity’s
assessable profit which is calculated at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%).

EhEEE KB AR AR E
RBRE MR E26% (ZF—NF:
25% ) Ft IR R B ERASH -

BERZZE—/—"ARRFELE
M2 MARFFNERE - HEZT
—EF+-_A=+—HALtFE &
RSB IR E T ER TG F16.5%
AR (ZE—NAF:165%) HA
& 1% E 88 2 52,000,000/ T B R TR
i I A1 #28.25% 5Tt (ZF — hL4F
8.25% ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

10.

11.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continueq)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as follows:

10. RS BiBI ST (4
ARG 1S mﬁﬁﬁ ARERZ
B BRI B IR AR AN T ¢

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Loss before tax bR B Al ES 18 (104,561) (86,124)
Tax thereon at domestic rates REBRVEERZERANER
applicable to profits or losses L EMMETE 2 HIE
in the jurisdictions concerned 14,625 14,454
Tax effect of expenses not TAMBRAZ 2 MG E
deductible for tax purposes (17,385) (12,846)
Tax effect of income not BARBRBA ZREHE
assessable for tax purposes 3,459 3,431
Tax effect of tax losses not RERREBEB MG T2
recognised (4,705) (8,158)
Tax effect of temporary differences  RAEREREE 2 MG L
not recognised (738) (2,950)
Utilisation of tax losses previously FANTARER 2 HIAEE
not recognised 3,492 714
Under provision in respect of BEFERETRE
prior years (469) (8,705)
Effect of special tax exemption FHRBEREAT T E 133 97
Income tax expense for the year FAMRGHRAX (1,588) (8,963)

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$108,257,000 (2019: HK$94,285,000) and the weighted
average number of 2,032,571,385 ordinary shares.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding during each of
the respective years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and
buildings

THRET
HK$'000
TAT

Leasehold
improvements

AERE
HK$'000
FA

13. Y5 - W E KRB

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

A
HK$'000
T

Motor
vehicles

A
HK$'000

BT

Plant and
machinery

B R E
HK$'000
T

Right-of-
use asset

HK$'000

:F

Cost 72
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n%—-A—-H 347,663 6,901 19,185 2,358 5,103 2,697 383,907
Additions RE - 1,070 2,611 261 263 2,820 17,025
Disposal of subsidaries HERBAR - - (17,759) (267) (3215) (3763) (25,004)
Disposals tE - (@72) (10) (270) - - (752)
Currency realignment EHAZ - (222) ©97) (25) (38) (41) (423)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=F-BR

1 January 2020 “3ZZ5-f-H 347,663 17,217 3,930 2,067 2,113 1,713 374,753
Additions RE - 1,564 2,383 - 431 267 4,645
Modification of lease HEBIT - - - - - (110) (110)
Currency realignment ExEE - 961 273 84 166 106 1,500
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BF+-A=t-A 347,663 19,802 6,586 214 2,710 1,976 380,878
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-n%-A-A 15,935 354 13,124 1875 3,721 - 35,015
Depreciation ik 17,383 2,382 1,393 204 308 1,428 23,098
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (13,187) (267) (3215) (762) (17,431)
Disposals HE - (362) 4) (256) = = (622)
Currency realignment 5 AE - 28) 83) (16) (14) (24) (145)
At 31 December 2019 and RIB-AE+ZA=t-HER

1 January 2020 —2-Z5-f-A 33318 2,346 1,263 1540 806 642 39915
Depreciation ik 17,383 2812 736 158 174 866 22,129
Impairment fE 1,336 2 - - = = 1,358
Modification of lease MEET - - - - - (69) (69)
Currency realignment B AE - 240 76 58 64 88 526
At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZE+-A=1-AH 52,037 5,420 2,075 1,756 1,044 1,527 63,859
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBF+-A=1-A 295,626 14,382 4,511 385 1,666 449 317,019
At 31 December 2019 R=E-AF+-A=1-H 314,345 14,931 2,667 517 1,307 1,071 334,838
Bank borrowings of HK$237,902,000 (2019: HK$242,214,000) iR 17 £ 237,902,000 ;¢ ( = =

are secured on the Group’s land and buildings.

— JLEE 1 242,214,000 7T ) A AR &=
B2t METFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14. R—EBE AT 2ER &

TO AN ASSOCIATE T—REBE ARRE

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had an interest RZEZTFR_ZE—NF+=A

in the following associate: =+—HB FXEERNATEE QG
BEER:

Proportion of

Proportion  voting rights

Principal of capital held by the

Form of business Place of place of Total capital ~ contributed by Group as

Name of entity structure incorporation  operation HK$'000 the Group  general partner  Principal activities

AR FEEEM TEx
[T City Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong 255,250 60% 28.57% [T properties
partnership ~ HEEE i investment
BRABA THERE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Movements of interest in R—EEERRZ
an associate are as follows: =S EIT
At 1 January n—A—H 150,349 155,611
Capital contribution to associate M ERREE 3,171 5,271
Share of results of an associate FE(E — B E AR 2 A 60 (10,533)
At 31 December m+=ZBA=+—H 153,580 150,349
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE
TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Note:

0

On 2 May 2018, the Group entered into the limited partnership agreement
in relation to the operation of IT City Development Fund LP (“IT City”)
and two subscription agreements in relation to the application to
subscribe for an interest in IT City with a committed capital contribution
of HK$51,000,000 in the capacity as general partner (through an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (‘GP1”)) and HK$100,000,000
in the capacity as limited partner (through a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) respectively. The principal purpose of IT
City is to invest in properties that can consolidate and promote the
development of IT industry and its related supporting facilities. According
to the limited partnership agreement, the management, policies and
control of IT City shall be vested exclusively in the general partners who,
acting unanimously, may make such investment decisions as they shall
determine, having given consideration to the investment objective and
investment strategy of IT City and the advice of the investment committee
of IT City (the “Investment Committee”). GP1 shall be entitled to appoint
two members to the Investment Committee, which demonstrates its
significant influence over IT City.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-T-TF+_A-t+—HALFE

14. A —BBE QR 2 ER e

f— B EkE QT FE ()

i :

)

R-ZFE—N\FRHRA-B AEEFTX
—BAERGEAGE ABBRALEIT
City Development Fund LP (TIT City )
LkMERE R NG P BRET
Cityl#zs EFERFEDBEBARA
MEZENBRARANEBABA(Y
MAE®A—]) 5L &51,000,000% 7T
REBARARBEEZEWNBARNSE
A& % A &5 H&100,000,0007 T ° IT
CityW =B B2 ENEEHES ki
HTTEREBEREZEOWE-R
BERGEARSE IT CtyWEE  BUR
RiFHIEEBRGBETEBEBA K&
I EEEBA (U—BTETE)AIR
ZEIT Cityri% & B2 RGBSR LA K&
ITCityz#REZ8g ([REZEE)H
EREREECHFHABIRERE T
BEBRA—EBEREAKREZESE
MEKE BRERT CtyREARFE
j] °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

14. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT DUE 14. R — %ﬂﬂﬁ*%ﬂﬁzgﬁ’ﬁ/ﬂg

TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continuead) F— R N T FRIE (&)
The summearised financial information in respect of IT City is set BEIT Cityz A E Rt an T
out below:

2020 2019
— 7 — qE —F— j-l.: j‘E’E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current assets MBEE 243,160 237,769
Total assets BEE 243,160 237,769
Current liabilities ViEB=RE (15,446) (10,567)
Total liabilities BEE (15,446) (10,567)
Net assets BEFE 227,714 227,202
Share of an associate’s net assets ~ JE/H—EHE A A 2 EEFE 153,580 150,349
Revenue = 12,217 12,234
Total comprehensive income 2HEWR SRR (2,376) (36,098)
Share of results of an associate FE(E — B E AR 2 ¥R
(net of tax) (FBRFRIE) 60 (10,633)
The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free JEAT — B & QR FRIE B EE T
and repayable on demand. BB RBNRERFERER-
At the date of this annual report, IT City has not identified any RAFIRHE B - 1T CityxR A % BT
potential project for investment. IT City and its general partners BEREEEB - IT C|ty&/ LERER
are now inviting potential investors to participate in order to AEBHNBEREEDE  ATE
increase the fund size and the investment options. ARESHRERIBMNEEBREE-
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

15. BAARBERERY RS

Financial assets at fair value RAREREBRIIERZ
through profit or loss cTHEE
— Unlisted equity investment - ETRAEKRE

gE
2020 2019
—EB-FH —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
7,020 22,624

The unlisted equity investment represents 18% equity interest
in ORBiz International Limited which was established for
provision of real-time kinematic solution. The equity of Link
Complex Limited, which owns this unlisted equity investment
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company was pledged
to secure the Group’s bond issued as detailed in notes 27(v) to

(vii).

FEEMRAKE B ANORBIZ
International Limited#)18%/% # ( A&
REEREEHRTRMAL) o 1A
B sE27(VE (Vi AT R -t TEIE BT
BAEERFBAREQRZZEN
B A AlLink Complex Limited#y %
ERERLNAREEERITNES
TEFER -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 6. B EE
License Goodwill Total
R B st
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i THET THET THET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-hF—-A—H 9,786 25,917 35,703
Impairment E 8 - (10,758) (10,758)
Currency realignment M 3 - (701) (701)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-AE+=ZA=+—8

and 1 January 2020 kR—_ZE-_Z5—-H—H 9,786 14,458 24,244
Impairment {E 8 - (8,271) (8,271)
Disposal & (600) - (600)
Currency realignment 0N R - 1,714 1,714
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BF+=-A=+—H 9,186 7,901 17,087
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

16.

17.

ZoEE+_RA=+—-HILFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The intangible assets comprise licenses and goodwill from
business combinations. License mainly represent the Type
4, Type 5, Type 6 and Type 9 regulated activities licenses
as defined under Securities and Futures Ordinance (‘SFO”)
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong. These licenses were
considered to have indefinite useful lives and will be assessed
for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that
it may be impaired. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
impairment loss of HK$8,271,000 (2019: HK$10,758,000) was
recognised on goodwill relating to acquisition of subsidiaries
engaged in manufacturing and sale of electronic products and
the related goodwill was fully impaired on 31 December 2020.

The Directors assessed the impairment of licenses under the
regulated financial services business segments at the CGU
level. Based on the results of the assessments, the directors
are of the opinion that there was no impairment of licenses
under the regulated financial services business segment as at
31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT ON LICENSES
AND GOODWILL

For the purpose of impairment assessment, licenses and
goodwill are allocated to the CGUs of money lending business,
regulated financial services business, electronic products and
property development and management as set out in note 16

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON LICENSES AND

GOODWILL (continuea)

Regulated financial services business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period
of 2021 — 2025 (2019: 2020 — 2024). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2019: 2%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the financial advisory industry in
Hong Kong.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

17. BB R BEE 2 BER (&)

ERETHBREEL
Iﬁ%?iﬁﬁz—fﬁﬂk/\%ﬁﬂﬁﬁf
EAEREZ T _—FF

—hHFE(ZF-NF: :%ﬁ;gii
—EoNE)ReRERANCRER
FHIR)RAEREEFEMEE -
BEAFHHEzZRERENRBMG
AAEFHERER2 (ZF—N
F2%)HEE BERERETHEBE
B u’EU TERHERX-

2020 2019
S -z =

Discount rate BhIR =
Management fee growth rate EEEIERE
Advisory fee growth rate BABERE
Costs growth rate PR AR IS R &

17.39% 15.58%
2% 2%

0% 0%

2% - 5% 2% - 5%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

As the recoverable amount of the CGU of the regulated
financial services exceeded the combined value of the
non-current assets under this CGU, the Directors are of the
opinion that there was no impairment on license and goodwill
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

ﬁﬁ?%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁiﬁ“?%ﬁ?ﬁ#jt&@wﬁ
AREELEM 2 ARER

ReELBEMZAWEERETIER
KEZEHREAERFH AR
RenERAZ TAIBREM S HE
EHE YD BERARERBRSE
3 - RARETIETIHEIREE Z
BFHEARKAFTHREREMEE -

HRERECHMBRBREELEEM
ZAMEmEEBH RS ELEM
BETRBDEECREER RES
RARERMEBR_T_FF+=
A=+—BYELBABE(=F
—hEFE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

17. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON LICENSES AND
GOODWILL (Continuea)

Property management services

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period
of 2021 — 2025 (2019: 2020 — 2024). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2019: 3%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for property management in the
PRC.

17. ERB R EE 2R E AR (&)

VX EERE
ReELXEM AW ESEIIR
BRERFH(ZEZ—FE2=_%F
“EF) (ZBE-NF —F-FF
E_T_MFE)NEABAETREM
ﬁzﬁ E’Jiﬁﬁmui E_/EJJ T?K)Eﬁfiﬁﬁﬁ
BAENEBEE - AFHUEZRS
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁfﬁeru%%ﬁiE%z%
—hF:3%)HHE ZHLXHAE
HﬁTt FEMEEENRBAER
&Ko

Discount rate AR I8 &
Management fee growth rate EEBBREX

2020 2019
=== qE -z j-l-rﬁz
16.46% 16.46%
10% 10%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The management fees within the five-year period were
determined based on past experience.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON LICENSES AND

GOODWILL (continuea)

Property management services (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

As the recoverable amount of the CGU of the property
management services exceeded the combined value of
the non-current assets under this CGU, the directors are of
the opinion that there was no impairment on goodwill as at
31 December 2020.

Electronics products

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
from value in use calculations based on cash flow projections
from formally approved budgets covering a five-year period
of 2021 — 2025 (2019: 2020 — 2024). Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate of 2% (2019: 2%), which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the manufacturing of electronics
products in the PRC.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

17. BERRBEEZRERNR (&)

MEEERY (&)

ReELEMZAIREERETIER
KEZFEHREAERFH AR
RenERAZ TAIBREMSHE
EHEE XD BRAARERBRSE
3 RARETIIETHEIREE Z N
BFHEARKAFTHREREMERE °

HRYEEERBREELEEMZ
A EmEeEBL R ELEMNIA
THRBEEZHREBE WEFR
REAER_ZT_ZFF+-_A=+—
B3 & ERRE

EFfEm
ReEXBEU 2 KE2EIR
BRERFH(ZE-_—FF_-%
—HF) (ZF-NFZFTF
ZE_T_ME)NERBEEEM
VE&E’]IE@/ALE%E/EUT%ﬁﬁ{ﬁﬁﬁ{g
EfENEE - AFHNE RS
mE DA MLEINET B RE2%
ZE-NF 2% )HEE ZERE
FEEHIHEATEEFEmEENR

Discount rate ABhIH =
Revenue growth rate WEsig R &
Costs growth rate P AR IE R R

2020 2019

—_ 7 — ﬂE —j‘Lﬁ‘E‘E
15.50% 15.83%
2%-14% 3% - 5%
2%-14% 3% - 5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

17.

ZoEE+_RA=+—-HILFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON LICENSES AND
GOODWILL (continuea)

Electronics products (Continued)
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was estimated using
unobservable market data from the projection of the future
cash flows of the business from its economic useful life and is
classified within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Fair value was
determined by discounting its present value by the weighted
average cost of capital determined from market data.

In view of the combined book value of the non-current assets
under the CGU being higher than the recoverable amount of
this CGU determined based on value in use, management
estimated that the fair value less cost to sell of this CGU
should not be materially different from its value in use since the
existing use of the subject non-current assets under the CGU
represent their highest and best use. Accordingly, based on
value in use calculation, an impairment loss of HK$8,271,000
against goodwill has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$10,758,000).

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

The management believes that a reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which management has based
its determination of the recoverable amounts of the CGUs of
regulated financial services business and property management
services would not cause the carrying amount of the respective
CGU to exceed the respective recoverable amount.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

INVENTORIES 18. Z&

2020 2019
—ECFF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TExT FET
Raw materials R 1,159 1,146
Work in progress F 85 1,427 6,339
Finished goods BUPK i 3,015 2,241
5,601 9,726

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 10. SEHEWE
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FExT FET
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 540,391 506,699

The properties are located at the underground of Minzhu
Road and Fuhui Road, Lijiang City, Yunan Province, the PRC.
The gross floor area of the underground walkway project is
approximately 36,583 square metre (“sq. m.”) comprising a civil
air defence work structure of approximately 13,730 sq. m., 741
units of the saleable shop premises with a total gross floor area
of approximately 19,923 sg. m., a non-saleable property utility
room of approximately 15 sq. m. and a commercial function
room of approximately 2,915 sg. m.. Properties held for sale
which are expected to be recovered more than twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are classified as current
assets as it is expected to be realised in the normal operating
cycle of the Group.

MEMNTPEEFEBEITRER
NEEEM T &t NHITHIAR
AR B36,583F K ([F
K1) HEELBI3,730FHFKZ
—TBARBZEIRAER BEERE
MEH# A19,928F 5 K 2741 7 $8
ERE EEOABIGERKRZ —H
TRAIHE MY E REEL A2,915F
TRz —HREELZREZTAEK -
ERE 2 METBHBNIREBRRER
+Z@EARBKE AR ETERE
AEEBEFELEAHNER HHE
DEERRBEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. EWE SRR EWRERE

2020 2019

—ECFF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade receivables BULE Z BRI 36,640 26,421
Less: impairment provision R E R (6,901) (3,883)
Trade receivables — net EBUNE RN —F58 29,739 22,538
Bills receivables ek ZEi% 2,698 792
32,437 23,330

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables before impairment, based on invoice date, is as

REZEHT RURBEZRANE
W ORER)NHE B 82 Rk

follows: Y R N
2020 2019

—E-EHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET AT

0 - 60 days FE60H 12,587 12,663
61 - 90 days 61 £90H 3,823 1,858
91 - 120 days 91 £120H 2,741 2,107
Over 120 days 1208 A 20,187 10,585
39,338 27,213

The Group allows credit periods ranging from O to 120 days
(2019: 0 to 120 days) to its trade customers depending on
their credit status and geographical location. The Directors
consider that the carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables approximate to their fair values.
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21.

22,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

CTANRE - REREMBER

IR

2020 2019
—E-EHF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - ZE REMm
other receivables FEW KB 53,812 43,262
Other tax recoverable H b A] U [0 F 18 2,001 =
55,813 43,262
LOAN RECEIVABLES 22 EIRE R
2020 2019
e i —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Loan receivables U E R 302,382 275,007
Less: impairment provision R E (83,874) (28,785)
Loan receivables - net U E R —F5 218,508 246,222

As at 31 December 2020, loan receivables with aggregate
gross principal amount of HK$277,400,000 and gross
interest receivables of HK$24,982,000 (2019: gross principal
amount of HK$264,000,000 and gross interest receivables
of HK$11,007,000) were due from fourteen (2019: twelve)
independent third parties. The interest rates of the loan
receivables range from 6% to 15% per annum (2019: 6% to
15% per annum.) Three (2019: three) of the loan receivables
are secured by share charges of the borrowers, and thirteen
(2019: ten) of the loan receivables are guaranteed by
independent third parties. The Group does not have the right
to sell or re-pledge the shares held as collateral in the absence
of default by the borrowers. All loan receivables which were
repayable within twelve months from the end of the reporting
period were classified as current assets at the reporting date.

RZEZEF+A=+—H &K
& 4% A 51277,400,000/% 7T 2 fE
W B K & e YR B 48 §824,982,000
BLT(ZE—NLEF A& BE
264,000,000/ 7T & & W F1| B 48 58
11,007,000 7T ) Ty X B + U &
TE-NF A ZR)BUE=F-
BRERZHENTREFHE
15% 2B (ZE— LG : FF6%E
15%) BER=IH(ZFE—-hF: =
H)EWEFRBERARGHLE
BEREREF+=H(ZE—NF:+
H) W E KRB E = HEER.
AEBIABSEBRALEZONE
ATHEXBERBAFELRERR
RGO -RMEBH MEARSEH
REEARTZEARNEBEEZEKE
REDERRDEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

23. ZREEITIER

2020 2019
—EB-®H —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Restricted bank deposits

R HIRITER

1,890 2,340

As at 31 December 2020, a bank deposit of approximately
HK$1,890,000 (2019: HK$2,340,000) was pledged for banking
borrowing amounting to HK$88,410,000 granted to the Group

(note 27(j)).

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RZZE_EF+_A=+—H" iR
T1F 5 491,890,000 T (ZZE—Hh
12,340,000 ) ERIR T AEE
B #R 17 & 7£88,410,0005% 7T /£ K
(MFE27()) °

24. BN E ZRARH B
|

2020 2019

—B-FF —F-NF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET FHET

Trade payables JERTE SRR 14,498 20,839
Accruals and other payables FEET B R & E b B A 149,989 145,328
164,487 166,167

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis of trade payables,
based on invoice date, is as follows:

REZ BB BNEZERARE
EEMZREDITT

2020 2019

=8l ==

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FET

0 - 60 days 6,352 15,077
61 - 90 days 2,528 2,167
Over 90 days 5,618 3,595
14,498 20,839

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
other payables approximate to their fair values.
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMEHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

25. NGB E

2020 2019
—ECFF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET

Contract liabilities arising from:

TIHEBELEZAHNRIE:

Provision of nursery service R 7R - 404
Provision of properties REMEERERSE
management services 3,373 2,691
Manufacturing of electronic products 4 & & F & & 299 -
3,672 3,095
Revenue recognised in relation to contract mENEERAZWE
liabilities
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Balance as at 1 January R—A—HZ&#% 3,095 3,782
Decrease in contract liabilities REEHRBFVETA
as a result of recognising revenue aHAaBEZWE
during the year that was included BREHNABRD
in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (2,846) (1,859)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HENEB A (MFE33) (249) (1,923)
Increase in contract liabilities WERTE T RIBE B
as a result of advanced SHABEEM
payments received 3,672 3,095
Balance as at 31 December Rt A=+—R2z2&% 3,672 3,095

SHAEEMERAT | 2020 £ 167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/NON-  26. FE{J IR FEiE RS T8
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due to a shareholder/non-controlling interests are FET AR IEE AR S A AR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B RAREKIEE-
27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 27. st BB
2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FEx FHET
Current: TE:
Bank loans and other borrowings R {TE R & H M E X
Secured term loans EERTEHER
(note (i), (iv) and (viii) (B EEG) ~ (v) R (vii) ) 7,654 10,401
Unsecured borrowing IR E R
(note (i), (iv) and (vii) B3 - (v) 2 viii)) 357 -
Guaranteed revolving loan BERERER
(note (i), (iv) and (viii)) (B & i) ~ (iv) B (viii) ) 551 -
Bond payable (note (v) to (vii) FERES (MW ZE (Vi) 190,000 260,000
198,562 270,401
Non-current: IEFRE
Bank loans and other borrowings $R{T& R & H b E =R
Secured term loans EERTEHEN
(note (i), (iv) and (vii) (BIEEQ) -~ (v) R (vii)) 230,248 232,148
Guaranteed revolving loan BERERER
(note (iii), (iv) and (vii) (B & i) ~ (iv) B (viii) ) 142 -
Bond payable (note (v) to (vii) FEES (B W) ZE (Vi) 70,000 =
300,390 232,148
Total st 498,952 502,549
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Loans amounted to HK$237,902,000 (2019:
HK$242,214,000) are secured by certain land and
buildings held by the Group of which HK$88,410,000 are
further secured by bank deposits of HK$1,890,000 (2019:
HK$2,340,000). As at 31 December 2020, term loans of
approximately HK$237,902,000 (2019: HK$242,214,000)
carried floating interest rate which ranged from 1.4% to
2% per annum (2019: same) over one-month HIBOR or
the lending bank’s cost of funds, whichever is higher.
HK$7,654,000 and HK$230,248,000 are repayable within
1 year and 2 to 3 years respectively.

Loan amounted to HK$357,000 is unsecured, carried
fixed interest rate of 8.48% per annum and repayable
within 1 year.

Loan amounted to HK$693,000 is secured by personal
guarantee of a former director of a subsidiary and carried
fixed interest rate of 11.34% per annum. HK$551,000 and
HK$142,000 are repayable within 1 year and 2 to 3 years
respectively.

All the loans do not contain repayment on demand clause
but are subject to the fulfilment of covenants. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the loans would become
repayable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with their covenants and there was no breach
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_THF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. T E &7 (#)

M

(i)

(i)

()

B #237,902,0008 T (=&
— N5 : 242,214,000 7T ) #
REBFFENET L RETF
{EK ¥ - H 788,410,000 T
# — 2 B #R 17 1% 701,890,000
B (ZF — N5 : 2,340,000
BI)ERB- R_T=FTF
+-A=Z=+—8 TEHERY
237,902,000 T (ZE— AN
F :242,214,0005%8 7T ) & — @
AIRITREREINEF1.4%E
2% (ZZ—NF - H8R) KFE
RN ERRITESKAE 2
8= &8 e 7,654,000/ 7T &
230,248,000 7t 2 BI A 14 A
KROEIFNEEIE-

/357,000 T A EE R - 1%
F8.48%H & M X5 E &
AMIFENEE-

B 3693,0008 LA B A E —
ZRIMTE SR ABRELRR -

I 1% FF11.34%H) B & FI R 5+
8.2 551,000 7T & 142,000/
DRI E R2EIFRNAE

Cl

aE o

B BRI EIR B SREEIER
BERTR#E - WASEER
R BERAREREERE -KE
BT HERERFSRBRL
MEEZZE_FTFR_F—H
F+ A=+ BULHFETE
BERRHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

V)

In 2018, the Group issued bond with principal amount
of HK$300,000,000 to an independent third party. The
bond bears interest at 8% per annum and matured in
December 2019. The interest is repayable quarterly
in arrears by the Group. On 23 July 2018, the Group
partially repaid the principal amount of HK$20,000,000.
The bond payable was secured by pledge of share
equity of certain subsidiaries including (i) Chengdu One
Two Three Aozhong Education Investment Company
Limited, the immediate holding company of operating
company of the provision of nursery education services
in PRC; (ii) Superactive Financial Group Company Limited
(“Superactive Financial Group”), the operating company of
the provision of regulated financial services in Hong Kong;
(i) Link Complex Limited, a company which held 18%
equity in ORBiz International Limited; and (iv) Shenzhen
Jiaxin Enterprise Management Company Limited
(“Shenzhen Jiaxin®).

On 24 December 2019, the Group partially repaid the
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 and the bondholder
granted an extension of the maturity date for the remaining
outstanding principal amount of HK$260,000,000 from
December 2019 to 28 December 2020.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of
certain subsidiaries including () Edisoft Investment Limited,
(i) Joint Faith Enterprise Limited, (i) Shenzhen City Qianhai
Wanke Financial Services Company Limited and (iv) Lijiang
Hua Ou Real Estate Company Limited, the operating
company which is engaged in property development in
PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

(vii)

(viil)

On 28 December 2020, the Group partially redeemed
the principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which have
been subsequently settled on 7 January 2021. The
bondholder further granted an extension of the maturity
date for the remaining outstanding principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 and the bond interest rate was
increased from 8% to 10% per annum. According to the
Third Supplemental Deed, the Group should redeem a
bond with a principal of HK$10,000,000 on 28 December
2020; On or before 28 June 2021, together with the
aggregate principal amount for the redemptions made
after 28 December 2020, the Group shall redeem not
less than principal of HK$20,000,000; On or before
28 December 2021, together with the aggregate
principal amount for the redemptions made after 28
December 2020, the Group shall redeem not less than
HK$160,000,000. On or before 28 June 2022, the Group
shall redeem all remaining outstanding principal amount of
the bonds.

Upon extension of the maturity date, the bond payable
was secured by additional pledge of share equity of
certain subsidiaries including (i) Joint Faith Enterprise
Management (Shenzhen) Company Limited, (ii)
Shenzhen Baike Enterprise Management Co., Ltd., the
immediate holding company of Lijiang Shunjin Business
Administration and Management Company and (iii)
Next Millions Limited, immediate holding company of
Superactive Finance Company Limited.

Except for loans with outstanding principal amount of
RMB882,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,050,000)
(2019: RMB300,000 (HK$335,250)), all interest-bearing
borrowings are denominated in HK$.

27.

(viil

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

CAEEHLHERASE
10,000,000/%75 BErERZ
T —F—AtHEBE-BEF
REACHREKHKREESRS
%8250,000,000/8 T — H &
TRH MEFMNEEHREF
8NIBEI0%  BEFE =1
HARE AKERER_-_Z=
TEF+ A=+ N \NHEBX
% 410,000,000/ TTH & %

RZEZ_—FAZ+NH=K
ZHCERR -_E-_FEF+=

AZ+NBZBAETEDHN
A RE AEEEED D
#20,000,000/8 T A€ : 1N =
_*i“f-_ﬂ_ﬂ—/\EHZZ
BERER-_ZE-_TF+_-A
_+J\EIZT§:FﬁLTTE“@E’J$
TRE AKEREEQD TR
160,000,000/ L - M —FE - =
FRAZTNBHEZA K&
EEBLESMEFGRAER
REHo

RIEEEEA B % - EAEH I
BINGHETHE R REE
BKiF - BEENE AR BIEE
EEEER(FINBRAR"
(iR TERCEEEERA
A (BTIEERELLEEES
RARIMEZER A A &)
Next Millions Limited ( 5 # & #5
BRABMNEEZERAR) -

BrAREEAS B ARESS2,000
7T (#8 & R 491,050,000/8 7T)
(ZZE—NF: AR¥300,000
7T (835,250 7T) ) 2 BEF A -
AT BRI UNBTEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

27. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)
At 31 December, total current and non-current borrowings
were scheduled to be repaid as follows:

27. 5T &

R+-A=+-8"

i 2h
B TA

(&)

ik
—+
i
mE
AT
F

it

PRIERBDEREREAT

L

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FET

Within one year —FR 198,562 270,401
More than one year, but not —FUAELETBBRE

exceeding two years 79,908 10,066
More than two years, but not MEA FERNBBRS

exceeding five years 220,482 222,082

498,952 502,549

28. LEASES

(a) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)
The Group leases a number of properties with a fixed
periodic rent over the lease term in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The lease term of properties are from 1
year to 5 years.
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28. LEASES (Continueq)

(b) Lease liabilities

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

28. #HE (&)

(b) HEEE

HK$ 000
FHET
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—H—H 24,894
Additions NE 2,820
Interest expense (note 7) FEZE (MEE7) 3,433
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HE M8 7] (FiFES3) (3,080)
Lease payments MERHK (4,641)
Currency realignment bE W A (429)
As at 31 December 2019 and ZE-NFF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2020 :Z\:Z\E—H —A 22,997
Additions NE 267
Interest expense (note 7) FEXZH (FiFE7) 1,693
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33) HENB A E (M5E33) (23,545)
Lease payments HERR (2,364)
Modification of lease MEEE] (42)
Currency realignment ME W, 1,454
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZZTF+-_A=+—8H 460
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

28. LEASES (Continuea) 28. & (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEE (&)
Future lease payments are due as follows: RRBEENZKBNBERDOT :

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REHENR AR RE

31 December 31 December 31 December

2019 2019 2019
“E-NE —E-hE
+=-HA=+—-8B +=ZA=+—~H

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THET TAERT THET

Not later than one year TER—F 3,919 (3,338) 581
Later than one year and BR—FETERME

not later than two years 3,432 (3,342) 90
Later than two years and ERWEETNERASE

not later than five years 10,797 (9,946) 851

Later than five years EBREF 37,791 (16,316) 21,475

55,939 (32,942) 22,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

28. LEASES (Continuea) 28. HE (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (Continued) (b) HEEE (&)
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REHESEMRK ME RE
31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 2020 2020
—EEF —E-EF
+=-ZHA=+—-H +=ZA=t+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TAERT THET
Not later than one year TER—F 282 (10) 272
Later than one year and BR—FETNEBRME
not later than two years 58 (6) 52
Later than two years and ERMEENERESF
not later than five years 142 (6) 136
482 (22) 460
The present value of future lease payments are analysed RAREENKZBEDTAT :
as:
2020 2019
—EZEF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Current liabilities mEBAE 272 581
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 188 22,416

460 22,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 20 BEBIEEE (BE)
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and movements AEERBAFEBRRZELERIE
thereon during the current year and prior year: BE/ (BAB)MEHEEE:
Intangible
Tax loss asset Total
BIEEE BREE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TERT TR
At 1 January 2019 RZZT—NE—A—H 8,789 (1,515) 7,274
Charged to profit or loss FraEalbk
for the year (note 10) (K¥3E10) (4,986) - (4,986)
Over provision in respect of BEFEHRERE
prior years (3,773) - (3,773)
Currency realignment BE 5 AR (30) - (30)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+=A
1 January 2020 =+t—Bk
“ZET-TF—-H—H - (1,515) (1,515)
Charged to profit or loss FHNBE BRI
for the year (note 10) (PFFzE10) - - -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZ-2HF
+=HA=+-8 - (1,515) (1,515)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised for the following:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

9. EEBIREE (8FE) (&

AERELEHRBEENT -

REYBMIBIAE R

Unused tax losses

2020 2019
—E_ZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
157,369 174,444

The Group recognises deferred tax assets in respect of tax
losses only where there is a reasonable expectation that these
tax losses will be utilised in the foreseeable future. Based on
forecast income streams and having considered potential
future earnings volatility, the Group does not anticipate the
utilisation of any significant portion of these unrecognised tax
losses in the foreseeable future.

The tax losses of the subsidiaries operating in PRC amounted
to HK$3,496,000 (2019: HK$20,053,000) can be carried
forward for five years from the year of incurrence of such loss
under the current tax legislation. Tax losses of HK$153,873,000
(2019: HK$154,391,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
The Group is therefore liable to 10% withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

AEBERAAEBBMHRERRER
RARERESRZBERATERE
FEEN IR A E - RIBFABIAR
REERBERRBN 2 KEER -

AEERPRARERAE TS A
ZEARERVIAER 2 M ERE

,f/'\ o

BEBERITRBED RAPBELE 2
Bt /8~ 7] < i I8 5 $8.3,496,000%
7T (=ZZ — A% : 20,053,000/ 7T )
HESAEHEEBE FEREER
F o BB E548153,873,000% 7T (=
T — N 1 154,391,000/ Jr ) 7] &
PREA4EEE o

BIEFBRPEMERE RPBEK
MZINERERINRBEESTIRS
BB BBMI0%TENT - Z B EH
—EEZN\F-A—ARER W\
AR=ZZFTLtF+_A=+—H%
Z BT EEINHIGE BT
AUERERET L BIBGRA - BT AE
BB E Bt AEEAEREZE
REBRAKERZLZHBARTR T
ZEN\F-—A—BHERDZANRE
& 2 B BB AN10%TE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

20 EEBIEEE(BE) (&)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries

established in the PRC. In the opinion of Directors,

it is not

probable that these subsidiaries will distribute their earnings
accrued after 1 January 2008 in the foreseeable future. As at
31 December 2020, the unrecognised deferred tax liability that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$2,537,000 (2019:

HK$2,331,000).

NR_TE_EFR_FT—NF+=A
=+—HB UERARQRFRPEK
S B AR 2 R E L BT A
EECZENRBEREERBE-ES
RE ZEWNBRRIRI R GRE
" EORBEER_ZEENF— A
—BERRZABN R_TZTF
+—H:+—E 1 LA 7N £ (B Bt /B

RAMAREL BRI MORERE
ERLTE B &4 52,537,000 7T (=
T— N4 12,331,000 7T) °

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. A
2020 2019
ot 43 —Z-NF
Number of Nominal Number of

shares value shares Nominal value

ROHE AfE R & E EE

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 SHREEI0ET
(2019: HK$0.10) each (ZZ-N%:010871)
)5 R 15,000,000,000  1,500,000,000 15,000,000,000  1,500,000,000
Issued and fully paid BETRER 2,032,571,385 203,257,139  2,032,571,385 203,257,139
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for both the current year and prior year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 94
and 95 of the consolidated financial statements.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

31. &

AEERBEBERERAFER
EiﬁZﬁﬁiﬂﬁwﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
FOARBAZ A EFK

Share Premium i gripigi=t
2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FET
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 476,989 476,989
Other Reserve H ks

The other reserve represents the net gain on the disposal of
the treasury shares.

Capital Reserve
The capital reserve represents the capital reserve arising on the
Group reorganisation carried out in 1994.

Translation Reserve

The translation reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising on the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

H e b EEFR D 2 W F
B e

B R
BEXRRBEASER - NANAMFE
TRBHEELEZERRHE-
BERE
BEREEERREBIEHZMH
BREEZELZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(i) 1283 China Education Development Limited, a 80% owned (i)
subsidiary of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation
to the non-controlling interests of 123 China Education
Development Limited and its subsidiaries before
intra-group eliminations is presented below:

32. FERERS

R A B 80% M & ZMTJ%E\
23T EHEERARA

HEBAIE H%Eé/‘wﬁ%%ms
TEBEHRBR DB LEM
NGNS LA ESESEIE: B 2
BEEVHERBREIT

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Current assets MBEE 375 5,625
Current liabilities mEAE (59,724) (64,809)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE — (22,193
Non-controlling interests IEFE G 2 8,885 28,531
Revenue g 1,756 8,171
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHEF, (EE) 6,962 (2,788)
Total comprehensive income FALHWNR BT
for the year 4,019 (1,824)
Loss attributable to the IEERE S RGBSR
non-controlling interests (2,296) (978)
Other comprehensive income IR RS
attributable to the HEth 2wl
non-controlling interests (1,177) 497
Total comprehensive income FEFE AR i 55 FE AL
attributable to the FEWNE AR
non-controlling interests (3,473) (481)
Dividends paid to EATIE IR AR B
non-controlling interests = -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KEEHEEX RS
operating activities (md) /RAFE (2,254) 1,066
Net cash outflow from KREEBEEZ
investing activities WL FEE — (7)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMEEBEA L
financing activities WERA (RE) F58 1,659 (952)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rd) /RAFE (595) 107
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Shenzhen Dowis Electronics Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Dowis”) and Zhaoqing Shengxiang Electronic Technology
Company Limited (“Zhaoging Shengxiang”), 60% owned
subsidiaries of the Company, has material non-controlling
interests. Summarised financial information in relation

(ii)

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

32. 3F?H§H‘E (&)

UM EEHFEFERA

(F ﬁ'Hu,\’EHﬁJ)&%F‘E%E%
FRIFBRAR([BEEE=E])
(7‘%le AIEBB0%E T 2 I B

RE)BAEEAFE R ES A

to the non-controlling interests of Shenzhen Dowis and AR ERITNEBREZERNE
Zhaoqing Shengxiang before intra-group eliminations is BN E 8H AT SR R B S
presented below: BEHHMEZ50T :
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Current assets MENE E 34,737 29,079
Non-current assets EmBEE 11,886 11,374
Current liabilities RBEE (42,776) (36,710)
Non-current liabilities EMBAR (148) -
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR (1,300) (1,443)
Revenue Y as 55,005 44,281
Loss for the year FAEE (410) (84)
Total comprehensive income FRE2HEKRETE
for the year (356) (116)
Loss attributable to the RS R EE
non-controlling interests (164) (34)
Other comprehensive FEVE AR HE 25 R4S
income attributable to Hi2mEka
the non-controlling interests 22 (13)
Total comprehensive FEIEIR A RS
income attributable to FHEHWRBE
the non-controlling interests (142) (47)
Dividends paid to BT IR AR R S AR
non-controlling interests = -
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from KREEHEEZ
operating activities Be (Rl RAFE (2,396) 3,736
Net cash outflow from KREEBEALZ
investing activities e FEE (75) (5,219)
Net cash inflow from BEEHEES
financing activities WEMAFE 3,077 1,380
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA/ ORi) %8 606 (103)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

() On 3 July 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a purchaser pursuant to which

the Group agreed to sell the entire share capital held of a
subsidiary, Chengdu One Two Three Aozhong Education
Investment Company Limited (‘Chengdu”), together with
shareholder’s loan of RMB13,118,314 to an independent
third party at a consideration of RMB10,000. The
disposal of Chengdu was completed in July 2020. The
net liabilities of Chengdu on 30 June 2020 were as

follows:

TFE+A=H K&
B & %“EJ_LEET%D%
BHAEERER— BB

—HEE—HMKEA TW%BE
BEBRPHEREBR DA
[RCER]) 2 28 A RA &
B AR#13,118,314T 2 IR &
B REAARE10,0007T °
HEXRMBONR T _TF+ A
TR T _FTF A

—~

=t+BzB8EFENT:
30 June 2020
—EEF
NA= 'f‘ A
Notes HK$’000

P &£ TR

Net liabilities disposed of:
Prepayments, deposits and

EHEZBEFR:

BRAE e KA RUR

other receivables 848
Cash and cash equivalents BeMASEED 305
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 BR R K B b & - 3RIE (11,494)
Contract liabilities EHEE 25 (249)
Lease liabilities Tﬂ E81E 28 (23,545)

(34,135)

Translation reserve BmE G 1,779
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M 2 18,541
(13,815)

HK$’000

FExT

Consideration RE 12
Add: Net liabilities disposed of m:ehHezaE s 13,815
Gain on disposal k=l 6 13,827
HK$’000

FET

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELECZE®RN

Cash consideration RERE 12
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRENIBESEY (305)
(293)

Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

On 6 May 2019, the Group entered into a sale and (i)
purchase agreement (as amended and supplemented by

a supplemental agreement) with a purchaser pursuant to

which the Group agreed to sell the entire issued share

capital of a subsidiary, Alford Industries Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Alford Group”) to an independent third party

at a cash consideration of HK$59,000,000. The disposal

of Alford Group was completed on 30 May 2019. The net

assets of Alford Group on 30 May 2019 were as follows:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

33. HEME A7 (&)

R-_ZE—AFERANE K&
BH—-ZEHIVEE R (K
HREBBBEI RAERT) BRI
CSEREMBYE=ZAHE—
FWB AR EEEXERRA
FEWBRR ([KEEE]) 2
EHMEBITHRA REAR S
59,000,000/ 7T ° M & = £ B
ER-ZE—NAFRA=1+H®
K- HEEEER_T—ILFh
A=+tRZEBEEFBEWNT:

30 May 2019
—ZT-hnF
HFA=+H
Notes HK$ 000
B 5T FHT
Net assets disposed of: BHECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment ER &L 7,573
Inventories FE 26,697
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 41,799
Prepayments, deposits and AR A - 1% & R H M E U FRIE
other receivables 8,419
Cash and cash equivalents RehBeEFED 27,085
Trade and other payables FETE 5 BR 5K & B b & - ;IR (51,893
Contract liabilities aHEaE 25 (1,923)
Tax payable FERT IR (6,603)
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 (3,080)
48,074
Translation reserve MERE (2,395)
45,679
HK$ 000
FHET
Consideration RE 59,000
Less: Net assets disposed of B EHECEEFE (45,679)
Gain on disposal & W 6 13,321
HK$ 000
FHET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECZRESRAFRE:
Cash consideration BeNRE 59,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRE MBS SEY (27,085)
31,915

SHREEEBEERAT | 2020 F ik

183



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HIFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

4. FERERERME

METHEL 2 BEHEK:

Interest
payables Interest-  Amounts due to
Amount due to included in bearing  non-controlling Lease
ashareholder  other payables borrowings interests liabilities
Eff-% Ef 2R
RRFE STEER BRENE HELE
(note 26) STARfELR (note 27) (note 26) (note 28)
(HzE26) FEZERFS (HtaEer) (Ht3Eoe) (Ht3tos)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx Thx TR Thx TFhx
A1 January 2019 R-Z-nE-A-B 152 27 439,269 2843 24,894
Changes from cash flows: ReNEEH:
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings SEERAMEE - - 90,335 - -
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BB EER - - (27,054) = =
Advance from a shareholder REZBH 977 = = = =
Advance from non-controling interests FERERER - - - 107 =
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings SEERZENTIS - (27,169) = = =
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilities BEREREZAEHS - - - - (1,208)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilties YIRBEARZFSHS - - - - (3,433
Total changes from financing cash flows: BERSRELBAE: 977 (27,163) 63,281 107 4,641)
Exchange adjustments ERHE - - (1) 56 (429)
Other changes: EHEE:
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts BITERREZIREMEELFIS
and other liabiliies - 27,784 - - 3,433
Disposal of subsidiaries LEHBAR - - - - (3,080)
Increase in lease liabilties REREEM - - - - 2,820
At 31 Decerber 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZB-NFTZA=t-AR
“E-%F-f-H 1,129 888 502,549 3,006 22,997
Changes from cash flows: Remeg
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings R f“TAPfHE HAE - - 1,073 - -
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings BETEER - - (4,692) - -
Advance from a shareholder RRZ 2K 32517 - - - -
Repayment to non-controling interests REERERER - - - (676) -
Interest paid on interest-bearing borrowings FEEFZERFIE - (16,758) - - -
Repayments of principal portion of lease liabilties EERERE AEHS - - - - 67)
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilties IAREEEZFEHH - - = = (1,699)
Total changes from financing cash flows: BERSRELBAE: 32517 (16,758) (3,619 (676) (2,364)
Exchange adjustments EXRZE - - 22 200 1,454
Other changes: EthEE:
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts BIEFRELUNREAEZFE
and other liabilities - 27,033 - - 1,693
Disposal of subsidiaries LEHBAR - - = = (23,545)
Increase in lease liabilities HESELM - - - - 267
Modification of lease REET - - - = (42)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEE+-A=1+-H 33,646 11,163 498,952 2,530 460
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

COMMITMENTS

Operating commitments

As Lessor
The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

35.

36.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

RAREE
RZEBE_TZFENR_ZT—NFE+A
—t+t—H AEBIETAME AR
REfE-

I

R

fEREHEA
A HEEEAER THRERER
HemT:

2020 2019

—ECRHF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FHET

Not later than one year BB —F 10,369 8,816
Later than one year and BB —FETHEBAMRE

not later than two years 2,343 1,888
Later than two years and BEAMFETBBERT

not later than five years 1,142 821

13,854 11,525

Operating lease payments represent rentals receivable by the
Group for certain of its shop premises. The leases run for an
initial period of 1-2 years (2019: 1-2 years). The shop premises
would be sold when potential buyers are located. None of the
leases contain contingent rentals.

KEREFREDNEASEREST
EERW 2 e ML 295 F
BIE2FE (ZE—NF1525F) -
BEBERESBEERFHE -
mBELHESHIAES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

36. COMMITMENTS (Continueq)

Capital commitments

At the reporting date, the Group had capital commitments
in respect of property development and property, plant and
equipment as follows:

36. &iE (&)

BARERE
REBERH AEBERYERAER
WE BFERRE2ERNEEDT

BRI AR B

Contracted but not provided for

2020 2019
S -z as
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET B
5,956 15,619

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of the key management during the year is as
follows:

37.

37.BEALRS
AEEFEEREIMEMT

2020 2019
g g 323 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET FET
Basic salaries and allowances, AR F e KR TEAAR
bonuses and benefits in kind EWAz= (H5E9)
(note 9) 918 662
Mandatory provident fund o8 il 14 A S R (FH15E9)
contributions (note 9) 16 S
934 662
Balances with related parties are disclosed in notes 14 and 26 BEREEAT V&R BEERGE K

to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than the disclosures above, the Group has not entered
into any other related party transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND

RISK

The Group’s objectives are: to provide returns for shareholders;
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
so that it continues to provide returns and benefits for its
stakeholders; to support the Group’s stability and growth; and
to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the Group’s
risk management capability.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders and issue new shares to reduce its
debt level.

Consistent with other industries, the Group monitors capital
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as total interest-bearing borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital represents total equity, as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

38. EAEEHEK K AR

AEEZBRRA: RRREH‘RD®:
REASBE 2 HEK LR Al
BRENERHDREN G K
AEEZBREERER: RREHE
AR RARE R R E A

REFNABELRRE NEEH
CREBXNTERRZBEZE B
BEATRRRBEITHRARER
ERAKFE-

HEMITE - AEEEREX
BELREZEER - Z L RIRER
FEBRAERNRENE A FR
R BEREERRAE MRS EE
YEHE - W nER & M ISR KR AT
N BEAREEEESAE

RBERRZERBBELEIMT

2020 2019

—E-EF —ET-NF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FET

Total net debt FETRREE 487,354 476,461
Total capital BB 558,580 616,064
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 87.25% 77.23%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks: including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
Risk management is carried out by key management under
the policies approved by the Board. The Group does not
have written risk management policies. However, the Board
meets regularly and co-operates closely with key management
to identify and evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to
manage financial risks.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Group’s operating activities.

The Group’s financial assets are primarily denominated in HK$
and RMB. The currencies to which the Group had significant
exposure on its monetary financial assets and liabilities included
RMB. At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the net exposure
expressed in HK$ is as follows:

39. M REREERKE

AEBAAZTRIER 2 SRR -
BIEINERR  FMXRER EERR
ERBELRR KNEBEZERAE
REREPRERT IS Z R
RE USRKEFERELAEEH
BRRZBETNEE -RREIRE
HEZEEEBREBEEFSMHEZEK
RPIT-AKELEEEERE R
BER-AM EXQHTBEETHEEE
Heml Z %A FIAB B RFER
- I 1 7E B TR B A B 2 SR

s L B

SNEREBRAEBMTIAZ ARBELR
RIR & 8 F 5 HE BE R 2 8 i R B
Z [\ B o 7R B2 [ T AACHE SO T R
BRARTIERTASEZRE)
o

AEBZeMEETEUNBTIRA
REFE-AEESRERLESH
EERBENERARZBEBEY
BRERARE - R_ZT_TFR_F
—NFE+ZA=+—B UBRX
RZEFRBINT

Assets

aE
2020 2019

RMB AR

—EZEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET

24 23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
in response to reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
reporting period. The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 9% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a decrease
in loss where the relevant currencies strengthen 9% against the
HK$. For a 9% weakening of the relevant currencies against
the HK$, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
loss and the balances below would be negative.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

30. B E b EE R BEER (&)

ShEE LB ()
TRETASERNERAKER RS
HIRASEERNRAR 2 IMNEE KSR
AREFMELZBE_T_FTF
A—ZF-—NF+ZA=1t—BL#F
EEBRZBNES FREINE
EHAREZINEFEESERE
W ELINEER Z9% BB HENF
RZBMEELRHE - TRPZERK
U fe 1B B B 1 L8 TTTHE 9% &
BZRIVEBBE-HEBEBEELET
A% BESEHBAERTRZ
FREH M N 2EBRK AR

2020 2019
—g-%F —F-hE
Increase in  Effect on loss Increase in Effect on loss
exchange rate for the year exchange rate for the year
HERBR HENER
=2 m A B R 422 o
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
THET FET
RMB ARE 9 3 3 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arises.

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates for variable rate
bank borrowings, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
loss) by approximately HK$2,379,000 (2019: HK$2,422,000).

The analysis is prepared assuming these financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis points increase or decrease in
interest rates is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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) 2 [ B
AEBNNERARERRKERTE
R RFBBITHRITERELRSE
BASRSRMNEREAR AEEL
REBNEREPEER AT BEEE
EENXEAR YR ETERE
JE I B AR R R R

RZE_EF+-_A=+—H 14
FEIRITEROMEEE AT
PR100ME 2 - M H b FT A & B8R IF

N AT AR ENRREER (K
25HE51E) 15 _EF T £ 492,379,000
BIL(ZZF —NF 2,422,000
TL) °

DMRBEZERHREHRHAREE
MERTAREFHRER F=X
EFAXTEI0EEHEARATE
EEEBABANRERMNRER K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables and loan receivables. The Group has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group is exposed to concentration risk as a significant
portion of its business is derived from its largest customers.
As at 31 December 2020, trade and bills receivables of
79.6% (2019: 85.8%) and loan receivables of 50.6% (2019:
61.1%) were contributed by the top five customers. In order
to minimise any credit risk, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to be responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt on a regular basis to ensure that
adequate impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts.
Management does not expect any significant losses of trade
receivables that have not been provided for by way of an
allowance.

In respect of loan receivables, all borrowers who obtain loans
from the Group are subject to management review. The Group
also demands certain borrowers to place collateral at the time
the agreement is entered into as securities of loans.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparts are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit rating agencies.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_THF+-_A=+—HILFE

30. B IS E b B TR I R (&)

EEER

AEEZEERBRETIERANER
EHRANREWER - REE D
EEEREK BEERBRFERD

g

AEBGFEEBRAESTRR TTEHE
X¥B T EMREBEZARFM
B2 EF+-_A=+—8"
FEUE 5 8RB IR R R #979.6%
—E-NFE:858%)EWKER
M50.6% (ZF —NF :61.1%) K
BERARREF-AREREAMFNEE
B AEBEEEECEZREKE
EETEERE EEFHREM
EEPRRR r DARE R BRER R #E 1T B Uk (B
BEER LN AEBEHRENS
HESEB 2T RE SR UER
FARESREIEL REREREE-
EREEHERE FERFRILEST
REXNBEMIDAGELBE-

W E XM E - BT A A & B E
BERZERAAFTEEEEEM-
AEE TR EFRETERARET LI
BREHERR UERERZE
o

nBEEZEERRER AKX

SHFREBEEFERER TS
EEFRZRIT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. KA ERERBUEKR (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERRK (&)

TR AKEERBERE SRR
RUEEZEERRNREREEES

The following table provides information about the Group’s
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables:

BzER:
Gross
Lifetime carrying Net carrying
ECL rate amount Lifetime ECL amount
2HEH 2
EEBEE REAE EEER REFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TET
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-ZHF
+t=ZA=+-H
Collective assessment R
Current B HR 0.1% 18,483 18 18,465
1 - 60 days past due #E - 60H 1% 6,527 65 6,462
61 - 90 days past due #HI61 - 90H 5% 496 25 471
91 - 120 days past due #EI91 - 120H 25% 482 120 362
Over 120 days past due BER208 A £ 50% 13,350 6,673 6,677
Total st 39,338 6,901 32,437
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—hEF
+-RA=+—
Collective assessment P ER
Current Eﬂ,ﬁ;ﬁ 0.1% 13,430 13 13,417
1 - 60 days past due A1 - 60H 0.5% 4,524 22 4,502
- 90 days past due #1Hi61 - 90H 5% 1,360 68 1,292
91 - 120 days past due #HH91 - 120H 25% 676 169 507
Over 120 days past due BEA1208 A £ 50% 7,223 3,611 3,612
Total Bt 27,213 3,883 23,330
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECL rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 3
years. These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables
are as follows:

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

30. B E b EE R BEER (&)

EERER (&)
BHEEBEXENBEIFLE
RERLR ZFHLEREDABMU
F2 bR JEE S ¥ i Sk AR 2 BRI AR
=82 B RTAOR A KR & E R IR
SRR FH 2 KEARANER

FEWE B RO ER B 2 EEIT -

2020 2019

g g 323 —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

At 1 January R—H—H 3,883 3,169
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 3,642 2,554
Impairment loss reversed BERERESE (858) (386)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR - (1,410)
Currency realignment PE 5, 3 2 234 (44)
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—H 6,901 3,883
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. KA ERERBUEKR (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continueq) EER (&)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREHREBARESERKERZE
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for loan receivables: ERRIEEBEEBEZER:

Non-credit impaired

FEERE
Stage 1 Stage 2
12-month ECL  Lifetime ECL
F—MER FRER
12 {8 B a8 ZHFE
FEER FEER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FET
At 31 December 2020 R-B-ZF
+=—HA=+-—8
Loan receivables JE W & X 105,209 197,173 302,382
Impairment allowance VERIERC ] (23,824) (60,050) (83,874)
Net of impairment allowance 1K BB B 5 81,385 137,123 218,508
At 31 December 2019 RZE—N&F
+-—A=+—H
Loan receivables JE W & X 169,254 105,753 275,007
Impairment allowance Ve RIEREL ] (16,681) (12,104) (28,785)
Net of impairment allowance 1 BB B 5 152,573 93,649 246,222
All loan receivables are not considered as credit-impaired as at FIERKEFRR-_ZE—NER=E
31 December 2019 and 2020. —EFT A=+ —BULEERR
EERME
The Group has provided in full against those receivables where AEBERBRERA T TAIUE 2
evidence suggests that the amounts outstanding are not REZBRWHIBEZ ©RBEEL 2 EHE
recoverable. e

194 Superactive Group Company Limited | ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to ensure that adequate funds are
available to meet commitments associated with its financial
liabilities.

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring
short term and long term cash outflows on a regular basis. The
Group mainly utilises cash to meet its liquidity requirements for
periods up to 30 days. Funding for long term liquidity needs
will be considered when liquidity requirements in the long term
are identified.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that
will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date. The contractual maturity analysis
below is based on the undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities.

2020

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

30. B E b EE R BEER (&)

MENE & E ks
REBZEEABRBEENEST
HBANENEEcEaBERY
Ao

AEEZBATHBREEEERLER
HRERHUNERHERBESF K-
AEEXTZNAREMEENRS
R HHRNZ B ESFTH - & &
EREMBECHER RAKHY
BB RNMBETSH TAZR-

TRARKEIZFHEEELEE A
AN ERSE BHEER NI
ARLEZHGERzERAEZD
$ﬁ UTRBRESBAEZ KRR
BEREBEHZAHNEIBMADH-

S5

Within one year
orondemand thantwoyears  than five years

Non-derivative financial liabiltties:
Trade and other payables (note 24)

FHTEERARE:

B AEHN R EBEATE

More thanone  More than two Total

year but less  years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
five years amount amount
—ERg BB-F REMF
RERK BHYRME BHREEF BRAF

AERREE REfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEx TiEn TER TER TER

(Wizk24) 164,487 - - - 164,487 164,487

Amount due to an associate BB EARRE 66,698 - - - 66,698 66,698
Amount due to a shareholder EN—AREHE 33,646 - - - 33,646 33,646
Amounts due to non-controling interests  FE( FEHR £ 35 ?*A 2,530 - - - 2,530 2,530
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) SHEmER (M) 213,793 89,287 225,429 - 528,509 498,952
Lease liabilties (note 26) REAE (HFs) 282 58 142 - 482 460
481,436 89,345 225,571 - 796,352 766,773
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. WKREAKREERBUR (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBETER (#)
2019 —nF
More than one More than two Total
Within one year year but less years but less More than undiscounted Carrying
or on demand than two years than five years five years amount amount
—ER5% BA-F BARE
RELHE BORME BIREE BRRF  AUREEE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fitn Fitn Fitn Fitn Fitn Fitn
Non-derivative financial liabilties: FTEemas:
Trade and other payables (note 24) ERESESREMERFE
(HizEo4) 166,167 - - - 166,167 166,167
Amount due to an associate B — B E A RHE 63,757 - - - 63,757 63,757
Amount due to a shareholder ER—ERRFE 1,129 - - - 1,129 1,129
Amounts due to non-controling interests ~ J& ﬁiﬂlﬁx%ﬁn 3,006 - - - 3,006 3,006
Interest-bearing borrowings (note 27) A 127) 284,313 18,658 208,217 - 531,188 502,549
Lease liabilties (note 28) MELE (FF28) 3919 3432 10,797 37,791 55,939 22,997
522,291 22,090 239,014 37,791 821,186 759,605
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by TREEREBEIEHME

category

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
relates to the following categories:

REEMBRART2IIZERE
ENBEROERNATENERH:

Financial assets:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE

At amortised cost: REBEHNATTE:
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEY 11,598 26,088
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITER 1,890 2,340
Trade and bills receivables EUE SRR R EWEE 32,437 23,330
Loan receivables JE W & 3R 218,508 246,222
Deposits and other receivables Lo R EMEWKFKIA 12,028 32,504
At fair value through profit or loss %2 2 ERIER FIER 7,020 22,624
283,481 353,108
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39. ft % & b B 3E [ BUR (4)

POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)
Financial liabilities:

THMEEREEIEME (&)

TRAE:

2020 2019
—ECEF —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET

Financial liabilities measured at REBHFERAFECERERS:
amortised cost:

Trade and other payables FERTE SRR R EA
AN 164,487 166,167
Amount due to an associate JE 1~ — [ B & A R IE 66,698 63,757
Amount due to a shareholder FE— R IRE IR 33,646 1,129
Amount due to non-controlling JE A FE 12 R #E 25 R IR
interests 2,530 3,006
Interest-bearing borrowings FHERER 498,952 502,549
Lease liabilities ME&E 460 22,997
766,773 759,605
The carrying values of the financial assets included above HREREENEHANEE HE
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature. EEEEAAEES-
The carrying values of the financial liabilities (including current HRESRABEREHAIE K (8
portion of interest-bearing borrowings) included above FErEERN RS ) REE SR
approximate their fair values due to their short term nature. HAREBEMRSE-

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for borrowings
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The
Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was assessed
to be insignificant. The carrying values of the non-current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings also approximate their
fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

AEERNERBBONARE
LNEBRITAMBAEAEUGER 28
[B B & #2 T G HA A fE FRA0 F R B
REMRRREREAE - ANEE
RZEBEZZEFR-ZZF-NAF+=
A=+—BREERENRRE
A RBM - REFERBTSH
FHAEEAR - T -_TFEE_-ZF
— N+ =ZA=+—HBHAAEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39. B B8 N BUR ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by cTREEREBEIEME (&)
category (Continued)

Relationship of Fair value
Significant  unobservable AE

Fair value Valuation  unobservable input(s) to 2020 2019

hierarchy technique(s) input(s) fair value HK$'000 HK$'000
FAHE

BART BAER = “2-hF

fEE R BERAE DAENBR THERT THAT

Financial assets at fair value 2227 EREE Level 3 Discounted ~ Discountrate  The higher the 7,020 22,624
through profit or loss SR EREE cash flows at22.16%  discount rate,
— Unlisted equity ~FETRATE (2019: 28.47%)  the lower the
instrument (note 15) (MizE15) fair value

Longterm  The higher the

revenue long term
growth rate revenue
ranged from growth rate,
103.66% to  the higher the
130.12% fair value
(2019: 129.52%
t0 284.43%)
F3R  EREeRE BHRELE  RRERHS 7,020 22,624
22.16% AR EBE
(ZZ-N&:
28.47%)

R R

BRELE  HEREYS

108.66%% DPRERS
130.12%
(ZZ-hF:
129.52%%
284.43%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 39. MR EE R BK (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by CREERBEIESE (&)
category (Continued)
There was no change in valuation technique between the two AR R F AR — B
years.
As at 31 December 2020, the fair values of unlisted equity RZEZEF+ZA=+—8H"3%
instrument has been determined by an independent firm of FRATAZAREEH —HF
professional valuer which holds a recognised and relevant ERANMEAEEER B IEE
professional qualification. HEMITEE
Recongiliation for financial instruments carried at fair value EAnEIRzemITAEREBER
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows: TR E R AE (F3R) 2 HRE

FENT

Unlisted equity investment FETRAERE

Financial assets at FVTPL

BAREREBSIIRZEREE

2020

—ECEH

HK$’000

FE&x
At 1 January R—H—H 22,624 26,086

Total losses: E 1R 1B EE -

Fair value change during the year FRNRAREES (15,604) (3,462)
At 31 December Bn+=—A=+—~ 7,020 22,624
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

For the purpose of valuation of the unlisted equity investment,
discounted cash flows method has been adopted. As at
31 December 2020, the key unobservable input used was
the expected revenue growth rate of the unlisted equity
investment. The expected revenue growth rate adopted
ranged from 107.66% to 151.81%. A reasonably possible
5% decrease/increase in the expected revenue growth rate
would result in increase/decrease in loss for the year ended 31
December 2020 and decrease/increase in equity of the Group
by HK$2,788,000 as at 31 December 2020.

e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-_ZEF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. B 75 [ b B 32 % UK (A1)

THMEEREEIEME (&)

BREDH
HIELTRAREZHEMS
ERMMRREREEZ- RT =
TFE+_A=+—HB FFEANE
ERAEEBABEAEIELTRA
BEMNEHRSZERER-FIIRAN
TEH W B R E N F107.66%F
151.81% - TEHIW R B R EAJ g2 &
B,/ ISR ERBEE_T =
TFE+_A=Z+—BALFEZEIE
BN RORAEBR T F
TZA=t+—BZEERD G
2,788,000/ JT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M5 HRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-T-_ZTHF+-_A=+—HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

40. R AR BRR KK #iES

I

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY )]
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
Note HK$’00_0 HK$'000
B 5E FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB KR 7 15
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z’E 21,629 21,629
21,636 21,644
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ERRIE -ZER
other receivables Hib e H& K I,E 354 233
Amounts due from subsidiaries JrE U Bf /B A B FRIA 867,229 917,233
Restricted bank deposits P E%Jfﬁfﬂ_ F 1,890 2,340
Cash and bank balances Be NMIBTTE 190 18,409
869,663 938,215
CURRENT LIABILITIES I b=X
Accruals and other payables FEETE A K
H h & 1~ KB 14,819 5,322
Amount due to a shareholder JE A5 — B IR R 33,634 1,118
Interest-bearing borrowings FrEER 192,600 263,500
241,053 269,940
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 628,610 668,275
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERBABERS
LIABILITIES 650,246 689,919
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings FHERER 155,810 86,010
155,810 86,010
NET ASSETS EEFRE 494,436 603,909
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR
Share capital [N 30 203,257 203,257
Reserves % 291,179 400,652
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 494,436 603,909

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

on 31 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

YEUNG SO LAI
BEE
DIRECTOR
EF
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40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M5 H R

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HALEFE

40. AR T B BRR R KRB

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY B (&)
(Continued)
Capital
Share Other redemption  Contributed  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
R EE HitfiE EXEERR BABR RitER b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TERL TERT TERL TERT TERT
(note)
(HraE)
At 1 January 2019 R=E-hr%-A-H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (32,481) 516915
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FREN R 2EKHEE
income for the year - - - - (116,263) (116,263)
At 31 December 2019 and R-B-hE+=A=+-AH
1 January 2020 k-2-%%-8-H 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (148,744) 400,652
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRBERZERELAE
income for the year - - - - (109,473) (109,473)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-Z5+-f=1-8 476,989 54 1,442 70,911 (258,217) 291,179
Note: MI5E

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the book values
of the underlying assets of the Company’s former subsidiaries, Pantronics
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, at the date on which the shares of these
companies were acquired, and the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company under a Group reorganisation in 1994,

In addition to retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
the contributed surplus account of a company is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot pay or declare a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if: it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

BN B g 15 A A B 31 M B A & Pantronics
Holdings Limited & H i & A B 2 fHEAEER
ZEQARZBRHERBEZAZEEAEERA
AIRBAEER - AN NFETEARET
ZRAEBEZERE-

BARSEREFNIN BREABRE-NAN-FRQ
A% —RABZBARBRITA DK R
i AR BEERN N REEEEERLE
Haf EEAEZEREERLEER
HERHEDETRARBRMEER AN
AIAR BN IR BB #A R
e DR
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RaMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-_ZT-_ZTF+-_A=1+—HLFE

41. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

M. FTEHNBLF
FTEMBATZHEMT:

Proportion of ownership interest

held by the Company
LONGESE 2o 4 S Aplg

Place of incorporation or  Issued and fully paid share

Name of company registration/operation capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities

RAER HMALESER/ SEHE ERTRAZRA/ERER Ef B TEEK

Superactive Financial Group Company Limited  Hong Kong/Hong Kong Orainary HK$12,500,000 - 100% Provision of regulated
financial services activities

FREBEEERAR B/ B 3817 12,500,0005 T REXAESHREED

Liiang Hua Ou Real Estate Company Limited ~ PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development

note) RMB5,000,000

BIZBRHEEEERDA (M) HE/HE &7 AR 5,000,000 NEHE

Lijang Shunjing Business Administrationand ~ PRC*/PRC Registered capital = 100%  Property management
Management Limited (note) RMBS5,000,000

BIRRHEREERARAR (M) HE /e 1A 2 AR 5,000,000 UELSE]

Superactive Finance Company Limited Hong Kong/Hong Kong Ordinary HK$15,000 S 100% Money lending

RRABERRR BR/ER L iBM15,0008 T HfE

Shenzhen Dowis Electronic Company Limited ~ PRC*/PRC Registered capital - 60% Manufacturing of
(note) RMB1,000,000 electronic products

RTEEREFERAT (M) HE/ e &R AR 1,000,000 PEETER

* These are companies with limited liabilities in the PRC * ZERRTEMNEREART

Note: The English name of the subsidiary represents the best effort by the
Company’s management to translate from its Chinese name as this
subsidiary has no official English name.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of all the other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 December 2020 or at any time during the year (year ended
31 December 2019: nil).
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